
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MEETING 
 
 
 

       
 
 
 
 

       
 
 
 
 

APRIL 4, 2011 

1



 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

OMAHA, NEBRASKA 
 
BOARD MEETING                   STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 
6:30 P.M.                                  5606 SOUTH 147th STREET 
                                                            APRIL 4, 2011 

AGENDA 
 

A. Call to Order 
 

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection 
 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
C. Roll Call 
 
D. Public Comments on agenda items – This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items 

only.  Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 
 

E. Routine Matters 
1. *Approval of Board of Education Minutes – March 21, 2011 
2. *Approval of Bills 
3. *Receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File 

 
F. Information Items 

1. Superintendent’s Comments 
2. Board Comments/Announcements 

 
G. Unfinished Business: 

 
H. New Business 

1. Appointment of NCLB Representative  
2. Approval of Schedule and Deadline for Submission of Board Vacancy Application 
3. Approval of Rule 3215.1 – Support Services – Business – Students – Tuition 
4. First Reading of Policy 3225 – Support Services – Business – Property – Sale & Disposal 
5. *Delete Policy 3230 – Support Services - Sales and Rental of Property 
6. *Delete Rule 3225.1 – Support Services – Disposal of Discarded or Withdrawn Library Media Resources 
7. *Delete Policy 5141 – Students - Management of Funds 
8. *Delete Rule 5141.1 – Students - Management of Funds 
9. Approval of Rule 5400.6 – Pupil Services – Standards for Student Conduct 
10. Administrators for Hire 
11. Approval of Personnel Actions: Amendment to Continuing Contract, Leave of Absence, Resignations, 

Rescission of Resignation, and New Hire  
12. Negotiation (Executive Session) 

 
I. Reports 

1. Budget Projections Report 
2. Enrollment Report 
3. Insurance Report 
4. Legislative Update 
5. Foundation Site Plan Grant Winners 

 
J.   Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar.   

1. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Thursday, April 14, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 
Center, 5606 South 147th Street 

2. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, April 18, 2010, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 
Center, 5606 South 147th Street 

 

2



 

 

Agenda 
April 4, 2011 
Page 2 
 
 

3. Annual Retiree Luncheon on Friday, April 29, 2011 at 12:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 
South 147th Street 

4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 2, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 
5606 South 147th Street 

5. Foundation Hall of Fame Banquet on Friday, May 6, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Qwest Center 
6. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, May 9, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
7. Employee Recognition Dinner on Wednesday, May 11, 2011 at 5:30 p.m. at Georgetown Club 
8. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 16, 2010, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
9. 2011 Graduation on Saturday, May 28, 2011 at Civic Auditorium – Millard North at 10 a.m., Millard South at 1 

p.m., and Millard West at 4 p.m. 
10. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 6, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 

5606 South 147th Street 
11. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, June 13, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
12. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 20, 2010, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
13. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, July 11, 2010, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
 

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.  Please make sure a request 
form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 

L.  Adjournment:   

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion.  Items may 
be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member. 

 

3



 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

OMAHA, NEBRASKA  
BOARD MEETING             STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 
6:30 P.M.                               5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET 
                                                                                     APRIL 4, 2011 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM 
A. Call to Order 
 
 The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection 
 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
C. Roll Call 
 
D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only.  Please 

make sure a request form is given to the Board President prior to the meeting. 
 
*E.1. Motion by                     , seconded by, ______________, to approve the Board of Education Minutes – March 21, 2011 (See 

enclosure.) 
 
*E.2. Motion by                     , seconded by                     , to approve the bills.  (See enclosures.) 
 
*E.3.  Motion by                     , seconded by                     , to receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File.  (See enclosure.) 
 
F.1.  Superintendent’s Comments 
 
F.2.  Board Comments/Announcements 
 
H.1. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to appoint Keith Lutz, Superintendent, as the authorized 

No Child Left Behind Grant Representative (See enclosure.) 
 
H.2.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the schedule and deadline for submission of 

Board Vacancy Application (See enclosure.) 
 
H.3. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Rule 3215.1 – Support Services – Business – 

Students - Tuition (See enclosure.) 
 
H.4. First Reading of Policy 3225 – Support Services – Sale of Books, Supplies and Equipment (See enclosure.) 
 
*H.5. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to delete Policy 3230 – Support Services – Sales and 

Rental of Property (See enclosure.) 
 
*H.6.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to delete Rule 3225.1 – Support Services – Disposal of 

Discarded or Withdrawn Library Media Resources (See enclosure.) 
 
*H.7.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to delete Policy 5141 – Students – Management of Funds 

(See enclosure.) 
 
*H.8.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to delete Rule 5141.1 – Students – Management of Funds 

(See enclosure.) 
 
H.9. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Rule 5400.6 – Pupil Services – Standards for 

Student Conduct (See enclosure.) 
 
H.10. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve administrators for hire: Matt Blomenkamp, 

Assistant Principal at Millard North High School and Michelle Klug, Assistant Principal at Millard South High School (See 
enclosure.)  

 

4



 

 

Administrative Memorandum 
April 4, 2011 
Page 2 
 
 
H.11. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Personnel Actions:  Amendment to Continuing 

Contract, Leave of Absence, Resignations, Rescission of Resignation, and New Hire (See enclosures.) 
 
H.12. Negotiation (Executive Session) 
 
I.  Reports: 

1. Budget Projections Report 
2. Enrollment Report 
3. Insurance Report 
4. Legislative Update 
5. Foundation Site Plan Grant Winners 

 
J.  Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar 

1. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Thursday, April 14, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 
5606 South 147th Street 

2. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, April 18, 2010, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 
5606 South 147th Street 

3. Annual Retiree Luncheon on Friday, April 29, 2011 at 12:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 
147th Street 

4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 2, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 
147th Street 

5. Foundation Hall of Fame Banquet on Friday, May 6, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Qwest Center 
6. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, May 9, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147th Street 
7. Employee Recognition Dinner on Wednesday, May 11, 2011 at 5:30 p.m. at Georgetown Club 
8. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 16, 2010, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147th Street 
9. 2011 Graduation on Saturday, May 28, 2011 at Civic Auditorium – Millard North at 10 a.m., Millard South at 1 p.m., 

and Millard West at 4 p.m. 
10. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 6, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 

147th Street 
11. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, June 13, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147th Street 
12. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 20, 2010, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147th Street 
13. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, July 11, 2010, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147th Street 
 

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.  Please make sure a request form is 
given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 

 
L.  Adjournment All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion.  

Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member. 
 
All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion.  Items may be 
deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member. 
 

5



MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO 17 

 
A meeting was held of the Board of Education of the School District No. 17, in the County of Douglas in the State of 
Nebraska.  The meeting was convened in open and public session at 6:30 p.m., Monday, March 21, 2011, at the Don Stroh 
Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street.   
 

Present: Dave Anderson, Mike Pate, Linda Poole, and Patrick Ricketts  
 
Absent: Julie Kannas and Mike Kennedy 
 

Notice of this meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Daily Record on Friday, March 18, 2011; a copy 
of the publication is being attached to these minutes.  Notice of this meeting was given to all members of the Board of 
Education and a copy of their Acknowledgment of Receipt of Notice and the agenda are attached to these minutes.  
Availability of the agenda was communicated in advance notice and in the notice of the Board of Education of this 
meeting.  All proceedings hereafter shown were taken while the convened meeting was open to the attendance of the 
public. 
 
Students performed prior to the Board meeting to celebrate Music in the Schools month. 
 
At 6:25 p.m. Dave Anderson opened the public hearing on Rule 6750.1 – Student Fees 
 
Roll call was taken and Dave Anderson, Mike Pate, Pat Ricketts and Linda Poole were present. 
 
Mr. Anderson received no requests to speak on Rule 6750.1 – Student Fees. 
 
Motion by Mike Pate, seconded by Linda Poole, to adjourn the meeting, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  
Motion carried. 
  
At 6:30 p.m. Dave Anderson called the meeting to order and announced the public meeting Act is posted on the wall and 
available for public inspection.  Mr. Anderson asked everyone to say the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll call was taken and Dave Anderson, Mike Pate, Pat Ricketts, and Linda Poole were present.  Absent were Julie 
Kannas and Mike Kennedy. 
 
Motion by Mike Pate, seconded by Pat Ricketts to excuse Mike Kennedy and Julie Kannas from the meeting, upon roll 
call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Patrick Ricketts, to approve the Board of Education Minutes from March 7, 2011, to 
approve the Special Board of Education Minutes for March 14, 2011, to approve the bills, and receive the treasurer’s 
report and place on file, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Linda Poole summarized the Board Committee of the Whole meeting held on Monday, March 14, 2011.  The topics for 
discussion were legislation and budget. 
 
Mr. Anderson said there were no requests to speak on agenda items, but he had two requests, and they would speak at the 
end of the meeting, because the topic was not on the agenda. 
 
Mr. Anderson also thanked the groups who performed prior to the meeting. 
 
Showcase highlighted all Middle School Musicians, Visual Arts (6-12), UNO Honor Choir, and Kiewit Middle School 
2010 Finance Challenge. 
 
 
 
 

6



Board of Education Minutes 
March 21, 2011 
Page 2 
 
 
Superintendent’s Comments: 
 

1.   Over the past week-end there was a meeting with Senator Nelson to discuss issues about schools from the 
federal level and also talked about the stimulus money. 

 
2. At the next meeting the timeline for community members, who have interest in being a school board member 

will be laid out according to the District’s policy. 
 
3. The next board of education meeting will be on Monday, April 4, 2011.  Due to the National School Boards 

Association Conference there will be no Committee meeting during April. 
 

4.   On Thursday there is a Learning Community sub-council #4 meeting.  Mike Pate, Dwite Pedersen, and Rick 
Kolowski will be at the meeting and discussion is expected to be on the attendance legislative bill, and the 
Learning Community. 

 
Board Comments: 
 
Mike Pate expressed his frustration with attending Learning Community meetings.  He commented that he has yet to see 
what will come out of the Learning Community.  He equates the meetings to power struggles between several individuals.  
He can’t understand those members who have made comments about the open enrollment process improving academic 
achievement, because he feels this is not a solution.  The problems are much bigger.  All districts have been opening up 
their schools for the many years during option enrollment, prior to open enrollment.  So, it is not much different than what 
has happened these many past years.  He has a concern that every member does not have the opportunity to voice their 
concerns without someone else berating what was said. 
 
Mr. Pate said he is still asking questions about where the funds are spent from the Learning Community.  He stated Rick 
Kolowski was elected to Phi Delta Kappa, which he has been before, but he wanted to know who pays for the membership 
and who pays for his transportation.  He wants to check on the funds used for their lobbyist.  He said he will continue to 
watch the spending of the Learning Community, and will keep asking questions. 
 
Mr. Pate encouraged community members to become engaged as to what the Learning Community is doing.  He is afraid 
that in several years we could be back to “One City One School District”. 
 
Alison Brokke, student representative from Millard West High School, Isis Hernandez, student representative from 
Millard South High School, and Jeff Story, student representative from Millard North High School, provided updates on 
all of the activities in athletics and academics at their respective high schools during the last couple of weeks. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Mike Pate, to approve Policy 10001 – Site-Based Planning and Management – Mini-
Magnets, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Mike Pate, to accept the resignation from Julie Kannas, Board of Education member, 
effective immediately, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Pat Ricketts, to approve Rule 10001.1 – Site-Based Planning and Management – 
Mini-Magnet Development Process, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Pat Ricketts, seconded by Mike Pate, to delete Rule 10001.2 – Site-Based Planning and Management – Center 
Development – A Plan for Low Enrollment Buildings, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Mike Pate, seconded by Linda Poole to reaffirm Policy 5800 – Pupil Services – District Computers, Software, 
and Data Files, Rule 5800.2 – Pupil Services – District Computers, Software, and Data Files: Right of Access, Rule  

7



Board of Education Minutes 
March 21, 2011 
Page 3 
 
 
5800.3 – Pupil Services – District Computers, Software, and Data Files: Access to Student Records, upon roll call vote, all 
members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Mike Pate, to approve Rule 5800.1 – Pupil Services – District Computers, Software, 
and Data Files: Compliance with Applicable Law and Use of District Computers, upon roll call vote, all members voted 
aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by, Mike Pate, to  reaffirm Policy 5470 – Pupil Services – Police Questioning and 
Apprehension and Rule 5470.1 – Pupil Services – Procedures for Law Enforcement Questioning and Apprehension of 
Students, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Mike Pate, seconded by Pat Ricketts, to approve Rule 6750.1 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – 
Student Fees, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Pat Ricketts, seconded by Mike Pate, to approve the Project Lead The Way (PLTW) Agreement be approved 
and that the Associate Superintendent for Educational Services be authorized and directed to execute any and all 
documents related to this project, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Dave Anderson stated to the audience that all of the projects being approved tonight are out of this year’s budget. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Mike Pate, to approve the contract for the Cather Elementary Reroofing Project 
Phase II of II be awarded to Prairie Construction in the amount of $319,000 (with such amount including the base bid and 
both alternates) and that the associate superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed to execute any 
and all documents related to such project, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Mike Pate, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve the contract for the Millard South High School Reroofing 
Project Phase II be awarded to McKinnis Roofing and Sheet Metal, Inc. in the amount of $341,433 and that the associate 
superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such 
project, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Pat Ricketts, to approve the contract for the Disney Soffit and Fascia Replacement 
Project be awarded to Rife Construction in the amount of $46,585 and that the associate superintendent for general 
administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such projects, upon roll call vote, all 
members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Pat Ricketts, to approve the contract for the Black Elk Flooring Project be awarded 
to Floors, Inc. in the amount of $114,289 (with such amount including the base bid only) and that the associate 
superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such 
project, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Pat Ricketts, seconded by Mike Pate, to approve the contract for the Norris Flooring Project be awarded to 
Floors, Inc. in the amount of $84,132 (with such amount including the base bid only) and that the associate superintendent 
for general administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project, upon roll 
call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Mike Pate, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve the contract for the Ezra Fabric Removal Project be awarded 
to Rife Construction in the amount of $42,998 and that the associate superintendent for general administration be 
authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project, upon roll call vote, all members voted 
aye.  Motion carried. 
 
 

8



Board of Education Minutes 
March 21, 2011 
Page 4 
 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Mike Pate, to approve the contract for the Millard North High School Reroofing 
Project be awarded to R. L. Craft of Omaha in the amount of $210,000 and that the associate superintendent for general 
administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project, upon roll call vote, all 
members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Mike Pate, to approve administrators for hire:  Ryan Saunders, Principal at Cody 
Elementary and Dawn Marten, Principal at Harvey Oaks Elementary, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion 
carried. 
 
Motion by Pat Ricketts, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve Personnel Actions:  Resignations: Deborah Bope, Robin 
Breedlove, Heidi Berry, Jason C. Gosnell, Antony Ritton; and New Hires: Denise M. Kully, Jennifer M. Gilin, Elizabeth 
A. Kocis, Jacqueline A. Sommer, Jennifer J. Nicholson, Nicholas J. Weaver, Stephanie D. Milligan, Molly M. Tessin, and 
Chad A. Mustard, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Mr. Anderson delayed Discussion Regarding Deployment of Security Personnel or Devices and Negotiation for Executive 
Session at the end of the meeting. 
 
A Legislative Update was the report for the evening. 

 
Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar:  A Board of Education Meeting will be held on Monday, April 4, 2011 at 
6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street.  A Board of Education Meeting will 
be held on Monday, April 18, 2010, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 
147th Street.  The Annual Retiree Luncheon will be on Friday, April 29, 2011 at 12:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh 
Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street.  A Board of Education Meeting will be held on Monday, May 
2, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street.  The Foundation Hall of 
Fame Banquet will be on Friday, May 6, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Qwest Center.  A Committee of the Whole 
Meeting will be held on Monday, May 9, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 
147th Street.  The Employee Recognition Dinner will be held on Wednesday, May 11, 2011 at 5:30 p.m. at 
Georgetown Club.  A Board of Education Meeting will be held on Monday, May 16, 2010, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at 
the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street.  The 2011 Graduations will be held on Saturday, 
May 28, 2011 at Civic Auditorium – Millard North at 10 a.m., Millard South at 1 p.m., and Millard West at 4 
p.m.  A Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 6, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 
Center, 5606 South 147th Street.  The Committee of the Whole Meeting will be held on Monday, June 13, 2011 
at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street.  A Board of Education Meeting 
will be held on Monday, June 20, 2010, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 
147th Street.  Board of Education Meeting on Monday, July 11, 2010, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh 
Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
 
Public Comments:  Two community members encouraged the Board of Education not to cut the strings program as they 
move forward in the budget process. 
 
Dave Anderson said the board would go into Executive Session for the purpose of discussion regarding deployment of 
security personnel or devices and negotiations. 
 
At 7:50 p.m.  Mike Pate made a motion, seconded by Linda Poole, to go into Executive Session for the purpose of 
discussion regarding deployment of security personnel or devices and negotiations, upon roll call vote, all members voted 
aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Dave Anderson said the board will go into Executive Session for the purpose of discussion regarding deployment of 
security personnel or devices and negotiations. 

9



Board of Education Minutes 
March 21, 2011 
Page 5 
 
 
 
Motion by Mike Pate, seconded by Linda Poole, to come out of Executive Session, upon roll call vote, all members voted 
aye.  Motion carried. 
 
David Anderson adjourned the meeting. 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
                       SECRETARY 

10



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Millard Public Schools 
April 4, 2011 

 

11



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  April 4, 2011

Date: 3/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
COLLEGE BOARD/NYO107482322129 2,320.00 
COX COMMUNICATIONS INC108436322130 43,952.00 
CREATIVE CENTER138582322131 49.00 
ANGELA M DIEHM133261322132 150.00 
HEALTH EDUCATION NETWORK LLC133468322133 179.00 
HY-VEE INC133397322134 227.62 
CDC SAN FRANCISCO LLC138581322135 724.68 
CDC SAN FRANCISCO LLC138581322136 724.68 
LAIDLAW TRANSIT INC058755322137 804,276.00 
NATIONAL SCHOOL PUBLIC RELATIONS100729322138 68.00 
NEBRASKA DISTRICT NFL109022322139 155.00 
BRIAN L NELSON107732322140 568.75 
TIMOTHY J OWENS138175322141 300.00 
TODD L REESON138504322142 150.00 
DENISE M RIEDER138538322143 150.00 
MARRIOTT HOTEL SERVICES INC138476322144 2,118.00 
MARRIOTT HOTEL SERVICES INC138476322145 1,151.38 
MARRIOTT HOTEL SERVICES INC138476322146 397.02 
MARRIOTT HOTEL SERVICES INC138476322147 397.02 
UNIV OF NEBRASKA MEDICAL CENTER132711322148 85.00 
STEPHEN W. VENTEICHER107354322149 450.00 
RUDOLPH A VLCEK III135863322150 356.25 
KASSF ENTERPRISES LTD138579322151 1,382.34 
JUSTIN L WILLIAMSON138537322153 300.00 
DANIEL P WOOTTON138505322154 81.25 
ELECTRONIC SOUND INC.038140322173 115.00 
WRIGHT EXPRESS FINANCIAL SVCS CORP138496322174 18,288.59 
GREATER OMAHA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE044982322175 364.00 
HILTON HOTELS CORPORATION136441322176 2,396.49 
HY-VEE INC133397322177 2,297.19 
HY-VEE INC132878322178 194.08 
HY-VEE INC135004322179 342.35 
HY-VEE INC049850322180 1,764.64 
NETCHEMIA LLC138425322181 9,625.00 
RALSTON HIGH SCHOOL099927322183 810.00 
SAM'S CLUB DIRECT081630322184 73.25 
SCHOOL SOCIAL WORK ASSN OF NE130044322185 75.00 
UNITED PARCEL SERVICE090242322187 455.06 
DTRS ST FRANCIS LLC138596322190 620.67 
WT COX SUBSCRIPTIONS INC100578322193 237.77 
BANCROFT BODY SHOP017789322194 1,000.00 
A & D TECHNICAL SUPPLY CO INC010040322195 1,800.24 
AA WHEEL & TRUCK SUPPLY INC107252322196 571.10 
ABLENET INC010165322197 1,870.90 
AC AWARDS INC131632322198 30.00 
ACCURATE LOCKSMITHS, INC010300322199 433.08 

12



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  April 4, 2011

Date: 3/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
ADAPTIVATION INC136378322200 178.00 
AIR-SIDE COMPONENTS, INC.010808322201 555.00 
AIRGAS NORTH CENTRAL INC108351322202 33.40 
AKSARBEN PIPE & SEWER CLEANING LLC133620322203 954.50 
FRANCE ALBANESI010884322204 124.20 
ALLIED OIL & SUPPLY, INC.011185322205 952.07 
ALLSTATE SIGN & PLAQUE CORP102913322206 87.22 
AMAZON.COM INC107651322208 882.62 
AMERICAN LIBRARY ASSOCIATION106998322209 250.00 
AMI GROUP INC102430322211 5,154.84 
AMSAN LLC069689322212 49,159.13 
HOLLAND USA INC012590322213 499.06 
ANDERSEN MIDDLE SCHOOL065425322214 348.00 
SUSAN J ANGLEMYER130469322215 317.43 
APPERSON PRINT RESOURCES INC138550322216 1,689.00 
APPLE COMPUTER INC012989322217 14,379.38 
AQUA-CHEM INC106436322218 1,585.80 
ARMBRUST FAMILY YMCA136880322219 192.00 
ART STUDIO CLAY COMPANY013209322220 43.34 
SARAH A ASCHENBRENNER134235322221 95.32 
ASCD013496322223 826.05 
KALMBACH PUBLISHING CO137869322224 79.95 
AUTISM CENTER OF NEBRASKA INC138291322225 11,907.88 
AUTO 1 TOWING INC138290322226 60.00 
ARNOLD MOTOR SUPPLY LP108092322227 519.47 
DEBRA A BABER133690322229 111.13 
BADGER BODY & TRUCK EQUIPMENT CO016295322230 1,362.34 
BAG 'N SAVE132405322231 10.74 
BAHR VERMEER HAECKER ARCHITECTS135245322232 16,608.00 
BARCO MUNICIPAL PRODUCTS, INC.017900322233 113.70 
BARNES & NOBLE BOOKSTORE099646322234 1,196.85 
BARNES DISTRIBUTION132608322235 297.14 
JULIE A BARTHOLOMEW133353322236 26.75 
BARTON SOLVENTS INC017923322237 50.00 
TERA BASS133359322238 80.00 
BAXTER FORD INC138054322239 443.72 
BRIAN F BEGLEY107540322241 1,121.70 
BERINGER CIACCIO DENNELL MABREY133480322243 5,529.75 
ROSE M BERNSTEIN133910322244 20.07 
BIO CORPORATION132475322246 529.32 
BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT019111322247 24,544.45 
TIFFANY M BOCK SMITH134478322248 77.52 
KIMBERLY M BOLAN130899322249 127.50 
BOULDEN PUBLISHING019530322250 36.85 
BOUND TO STAY BOUND BOOKS INC019559322251 9,071.32 
BOYS TOWN NATIONAL019835322252 3,536.24 

13



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  April 4, 2011

Date: 3/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
PAMELA A BRENNAN130576322253 152.49 
BUREAU OF EDUCATION & RESEARCH020550322254 199.00 
BUSINESS MEDIA INC099431322256 10,954.00 
CALLOWAY HOUSE INC023831322258 438.08 
ELIZABETH J CAREY106806322259 37.28 
PIONEER LOCK CO INC054237322260 6.00 
CAROLINA BIOLOGICAL SUPPLY CO023970322261 148.93 
CURTIS R CASE131158322262 107.64 
CCS PRESENTATION SYSTEMS133970322263 3,265.00 
CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.133589322264 843.67 
CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL065420322265 2,622.00 
CENTRAL STATES INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY024425322266 558.17 
NCH CORPORATION132206322267 114.50 
SUSAN M CHADWICK135648322268 39.22 
CHANNING BETE COMPANY INC018865322269 225.41 
PHUONG ANH THI CHAU137204322270 27.55 
KEVIN J CHICK106836322271 357.20 
CHILDREN'S HOME HEALTHCARE106851322272 7,239.75 
PATRICIA A CLIFTON131135322274 61.86 
COMMERCIAL AIR MANAGEMENT INC109867322276 615.00 
CFI TIRE SERVICE INC138546322277 828.00 
COMMUNICATION SERVICES INC.106902322279 65.00 
OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CTRS OF NE PC135082322280 96.00 
CONTROL MASTERS INC026057322282 4,426.64 
CORMACI CONSTRUCTION INC132170322283 250.00 
MONICA M COX133002322285 152.13 
CPI QUALIFIED PLAN CONSULTANTS INC137395322286 932.50 
MANSON WESTERN CORPORATION137377322290 323.24 
CROSS COUNTRY SEMINARS INC.130703322291 189.00 
CROSS POINTE INNOVATIONS LLC138169322292 3,105.01 
CRYSTAL SPRINGS BOOKS099957322293 50.85 
JULIE R CULLER134679322294 25.66 
CUMMINS CENTRAL POWER LLC027300322295 3,450.46 
CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES INC027345322296 14,287.90 
CURTIS 1000 INC100577322297 36.50 
CHERYL L CUSTARD130900322298 96.90 
D & D COMMUNICATIONS130731322299 62.00 
JEAN T DAIGLE132671322300 117.81 
DAILY RECORD131003322301 101.20 
STACY DARNOLD138306322302 63.29 
DATA POWER TECHNOLOGY CORP138584322303 142.50 
MICHAEL A DAUBERT138583322304 37.47 
PAMELA M DAVIS032246322305 78.54 
CHERYL R DECKER032497322306 40.80 
DEFFENBAUGH INDUSTRIES107469322307 10,851.68 
ANDREW S DEFREECE106713322308 77.93 

14



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  April 4, 2011

Date: 3/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
DELTA EDUCATION LLC099249322309 20.95 
DEMCO INC032800322310 81.95 
DENNIS SUPPLY COMPANY032872322312 309.09 
EVA DENTON136316322313 25.81 
DEX MEDIA EAST LLC109850322314 231.16 
VOGEL WEST INC130685322315 193.17 
DICK BLICK CO099220322316 617.50 
JOHN D DICKEY132750322317 90.98 
DIESEL POWER EQUIPMENT CO INC137713322318 17,017.48 
DIETZE MUSIC HOUSE INC033473322319 408.40 
DIGITAL DOT SYSTEMS INC132669322320 1,085.00 
DIRECT ADVANTAGE131797322321 26.80 
MATTHEW L DOMINY135973322323 55.69 
DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DIST.28-0001130908322327 443,946.32 
DRAPHIX, LLC103050322328 585.21 
SUSAN M DULANY135689322329 72.68 
JEANNE J DYMOND137117322330 17.54 
KELLY EALY138426322332 39.42 
EASTERN NE HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY036520322333 22,496.00 
ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO052370322334 1,308.61 
NORTHWEST REGIONAL ED LABORATORY069805322335 126.00 
EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #3037525322336 147,169.40 
GHC SPECIALTY BRANDS LLC132689322337 15.98 
ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING & EQPT CO038100322338 3.41 
ELECTRONIC SOUND INC.038140322339 1,206.26 
ELMAN & CO INC131007322340 545.00 
ENGINEERED CONTROLS INC132066322341 425.25 
ERIC ARMIN INC102791322342 246.23 
TED H ESSER109066322344 157.29 
ETA/CUISENAIRE035610322345 489.42 
RLB ENTERPRISE LLC131927322348 15.50 
FATHER FLANAGANS BOYS HOME132699322350 2,360.75 
FATHER FLANAGANS BOYS HOME132699322351 763.03 
FEDERAL EXPRESS040450322352 976.52 
FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC040537322353 26.99 
FERRELLGAS106956322354 50.46 
FILTER SHOP INC133919322355 3,413.98 
FIREGUARD INC133960322356 509.55 
FIRST NATIONAL BANK TRUST DEPT040902322357 500.00 
FLEET US LLC136370322359 12,600.00 
FLOORS INC131555322360 217.00 
FOLLETT LIBRARY RESOURCES041100322361 3,256.52 
PATRICK R FOSTER134577322362 84.00 
FREE SPIRIT PUBLISHING INC041463322363 474.63 
AMY J FRIEDMAN041543322364 29.99 
FSH COMMUNICATIONS LLC135031322365 180.00 

15



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  April 4, 2011

Date: 3/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
MICHELE L GEHRINGER108300322366 1,429.60 
GHC SPECIALTY BRANDS LLC132689322367 112.39 
GLASSMASTERS INC106660322369 790.97 
GOPHER044891322370 156.60 
KAREN A GORDON044896322371 44.83 
GP DIRECT043609322372 157.90 
GRAINGER INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY044950322373 1,688.85 
KATHERINE A GRAY044965322374 90.68 
GRAYBAR ELECTRIC COMPANY INC099888322375 170.24 
ANGELA M GRIGGS134751322376 181.88 
CANDRA R GUENTHER135016322377 124.18 
GUIDANCE GROUP INC138571322378 817.28 
HANCOCK FABRICS101931322379 122.31 
HAPPY CAB COMPANY INC047853322381 23,898.35 
HARCOURT OUTLINES INC047856322382 90.40 
HARRY A KOCH COMPANY056820322384 3,667.00 
HEARTLAND FOUNDATION048475322386 12,556.00 
MARGARET HEBENSTREIT PT108273322387 86.70 
GREENWOOD PUBLISHING GROUP INC048517322388 3,778.63 
DAVID C HEMPHILL108478322389 1,010.44 
HEWLETT PACKARD CO132423322390 6,925.56 
LAB SAFETY SUPPLY INC048710322391 133.54 
HOBBY LOBBY STORES INC048940322393 263.41 
WILLIAM SPRAGUE, JR.132592322394 26.35 
LLOYD M HOSHAW135589322395 32.93 
VICTORIA L HOSKOVEC136336322396 82.78 
HOUGHTON MIFFLIN HARCOURT PUB CO049650322397 1,151.98 
DIANE F HOWARD101533322398 21.06 
HUSKER GLASS133247322400 2,198.00 
HUSKER MIDWEST PRINTING101032322401 73.65 
HY-VEE INC133397322402 2.62 
IB-ARMS134048322403 1,570.00 
POPCO INC051573322404 62.00 
INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CENTER102958322407 44.98 
J A SEXAUER101991322408 5,290.56 
J W PEPPER & SON INC.100928322409 468.77 
KORRINDA K JAMIESON136314322410 126.13 
CHRISTINE A JANOVEC-POEHLMAN131157322411 59.01 
JSDO I LLC136953322412 992.46 
GEORGE W JELKIN135735322413 445.30 
JULIA M JENKINS138540322414 60.00 
DEBBIE A JENKINS133059322415 156.39 
JENSEN TIRE COMPANY133037322416 767.02 
JIFFY SUPPLY131457322417 12.00 
JOHN DEERE LANDSCAPES132959322419 0.00 
DESIREE K JOHN135999322420 67.17 

16



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  April 4, 2011

Date: 3/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
AMANDA J JOHNSON131367322421 715.78 
JOHNSON CONTROLS INC130994322422 429.48 
JOHNSON HARDWARE CO LLC054500322423 680.40 
JOURNAL STAR PRINTING CO.059564322424 117.00 
ALICIA M JUDERNATZ138603322425 247.09 
KAPCO101224322427 108.58 
KAPLAN EARLY LEARNING CO056215322428 499.41 
KARCHER NORTH AMERICA INC134194322429 1,652.15 
CATHERINE A KEISER132265322430 79.56 
JEANNE M KELLEY056278322431 459.98 
KELVIN ELECTRONICS056276322432 339.02 
DENNIS F KIMBERLIN132676322434 565.60 
KERRI KIRCHNER138587322435 144.93 
BETTY H KLESITZ056770322436 39.78 
SUSAN R KLOPP133944322437 12.95 
KONICA MINOLTA PRINTING SOLUTIONS134607322438 53,259.25 
JANET F KRUGER057683322439 81.80 
KUBAT PHARMACY/HEALTHCARE133923322440 11,312.00 
AMANDA J KUNES109033322442 381.32 
MCKAYLA LABORDE137694322443 579.36 
CHRISTINA A LAGRONE137010322444 74.21 
LAIDLAW TRANSIT INC058755322447 150,536.54 
LAKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS099217322448 6,524.52 
LAMP RYNEARSON ASSOCIATES INC058775322449 764.00 
LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES135257322450 264.53 
JANET L LARSON136518322451 42.05 
LARUE DISTRIBUTING INC102491322452 787.28 
LAWSON PRODUCTS INC135156322454 258.84 
VOYAGER EXPANDED LEARNING136240322455 84.95 
NATIONAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL134162322456 447.00 
BONNIE K LEVINGER137345322460 17.85 
LIBRA INDUSTRIES137944322461 136.80 
LIEN TERMITE & PEST CONTROL INC059470322462 482.00 
LINGUISYSTEMS, INC.059577322464 1,996.10 
MATHESON TRI-GAS INC059560322465 688.95 
KRAIG J LOFQUIST133758322466 81.67 
COURTNEY LOHRENZ136315322467 13.97 
JOE MCDERMOTT & ASSOCIATES INC060100322468 582.00 
LOVELESS MACHINE & GRINDING060111322469 64.70 
LOWE'S HOME CENTERS INC131397322470 504.72 
MACKIN BOOK CO099321322471 11,636.52 
MAKEMUSIC INC132556322472 107.95 
MARCO PRODUCTS INC063920322473 282.24 
MARENEM INC.135791322474 115.50 
MARY RUTH BOOKS INC137374322476 269.45 
MASTER TEACHER064142322477 207.51 

17



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  April 4, 2011

Date: 3/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
MAX I WALKER108052322478 598.86 
MAXIM HEALTHCARE SERVICES INC138341322479 6,096.58 
MJ-1 LLC101129322480 19.17 
AMERICAN BUSINESS NETWORK100944322482 55.65 
ALBERT G MCKAIN063361322484 34.43 
MENARDS INC064413322485 61.69 
MESSAGING ARCHITECTSF03009322487 1,000.00 
METAL DOORS & HARDWARE COMPANY INC064600322488 1,597.00 
METAL LOGOS AND MORE102139322489 146.56 
AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK133403322491 10,765.28 
MIDLAND COMPUTER INC102870322492 533.64 
MIDWEST STORAGE SOLUTIONS131899322493 982.00 
MIDWEST TURF & IRRIGATION INC065233322494 2,153.39 
MILLARD DRYWALL SERVICES, INC.065300322495 1,113.60 
MILLARD LUMBER INC065400322496 120.32 
MILLARD NORTH HIGH SCHOOL065438322497 1,260.00 
MILLARD SCHOOLS ADMIN ACTIVITY FUND065410322498 266.75 
ANNE C MILLER135388322499 25.26 
ERIKA G MILLER138585322500 96.83 
LES HAYS GRAPHIC DESIGN INC136393322502 1,257.00 
MONTESSORI OPPORTUNITIES INC133517322503 1,494.24 
KAREN F MONTGOMERY066083322504 30.91 
MORRISSEY ENGINEERING INC134532322506 16,900.00 
MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO063150322507 576.71 
MSI SYSTEMS INTEGRATORS LLC138575322508 1,218.44 
DEVONYE J MULLINS137052322509 155.80 
MURPHY TRACTOR & EQUIPMENT CO133712322510 453.79 
DANIEL M MURPHY066510322511 53.03 
DARREN D MYERS131395322512 76.50 
NASCO067000322513 342.78 
NATIONAL ASSOC FOR EDUCATION102999322514 504.90 
CENTER FOR OCCUPATIONAL RESEARCH136864322515 75.00 
NCTM066671322516 127.49 
NATIONAL MIDDLE SCHOOL ASSOC067801322517 220.00 
NATIONAL PROFESSIONAL RESOURCES INC067865322518 108.73 
NATIONAL SAFETY COUNCIL132854322519 310.00 
NATIONAL SCHOLASTIC PRESS ASSN131854322520 258.00 
JOHN C NOWELL067996322521 267.99 
SCANTRON CORP130548322522 1,620.38 
NEBRASKA AIR FILTER INC068334322523 2,378.64 
NEBRASKA ASSOCIATION FOR THE GIFTED068340322524 1,000.00 
NEBRASKA EDUCATIONAL TECH ASSN100216322526 485.00 
NEBRASKA FURNITURE MART INC068445322527 2,851.65 
NANCY G NELSON131550322528 217.74 
NETCHEMIA LLC138425322529 19,684.00 
CAROL C NEWTON069099322531 86.14 

18



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  April 4, 2011

Date: 3/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
NEXTEL PARTNERS INC109843322532 9,578.29 
NOBBIES INC069675322533 56.13 
NOVEL UNITS INC069936322534 828.95 
KELLY R O'TOOLE133368322536 224.67 
OFFICE DEPOT  84133510100013322541 9,116.20 
OHARCO DISTRIBUTORS070245322542 576.11 
WADSWORTH OLD CHICAGO INC138072322543 55.08 
OMAHA PAPER COMPANY INC.070700322545 21,581.60 
OMAHA PERFORMING ARTS SOCIETY135792322546 130.00 
OMAHA POLICE UNION LOCAL 101137921322547 400.00 
OMAHA WORLD HERALD CO071050322549 608.76 
ONE SOURCE133850322550 672.00 
ORIENTAL TRADING COMPANY071138322551 187.80 
ORIGIN INSTRUMENTS CORPORATION136792322552 806.09 
ORIZON CPAS LLC132146322553 1,621.60 
OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY107193322555 3,345.25 
LANCE L OTT134730322556 79.08 
OZANAM/BIST132443322557 452.00 
PAPIO TRANSPORT SCHOOL SERVICE INC138288322560 16,099.00 
GEORGE PARKER137015322561 91.19 
ANDREA L PARSONS132006322562 118.83 
DAVID L PATTEN106559322563 166.26 
PAUL H BROOKES PUBLISHING CO020175322564 114.00 
PAYFLEX SYSTEMS USA INC071891322565 4,805.00 
PATRICIA D BUFFUM131610322566 140.00 
PAULA A PEAL071947322567 22.08 
PEARSON EDUCATION082652322568 9,930.98 
PELLETS130737322569 102.00 
PERFECTION LEARNING CORP.072200322570 4,959.55 
CMI EDUCATION INSTITUTE INC133633322571 179.99 
ANGELA J PETERSON137009322572 30.04 
PIONEER VALLEY EDUCATIONAL PRESS132086322574 585.20 
PITNEY BOWES PRESORT SERVICES INC073040322575 20,000.00 
ALL THE MARBLES LLC137756322576 200.00 
PLAYTIME EQUIPMENT & SCHOOL SUPPLY072850322578 442.78 
POPPLERS MUSIC INC072900322579 388.90 
PRAIRIE MECHANICAL CORP131835322580 5,662.10 
PRIMARY CONCEPTS102423322581 207.20 
PRIMEX WIRELESS INC133745322582 756.26 
PSYCHOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT073840322584 1,659.24 
PUSH PEDAL PULL131901322585 25,573.00 
RAWSON & SONS ROOFING, INC.078420322586 5,705.00 
BETHANY B RAY109810322587 129.03 
READ NATURALLY102568322589 2,748.90 
REALLY GOOD STUFF INC100642322590 1,424.16 
RECORDED BOOKS LLC078674322591 553.43 

19



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  April 4, 2011

Date: 3/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
MATTHEW K REGA133191322592 25.30 
RESEARCH PRESS CO079055322594 124.08 
MATT RESOURCES INC100813322595 63.46 
RIVERSIDE TECHNOLOGIES INC136847322597 1,377.17 
ROCKBROOK CAMERA CENTER079310322598 1,556.00 
EILEEN A RONCI134081322599 193.80 
ROOFING SOLUTIONS INC134824322600 15,000.00 
JANET S ROSE137511322601 8.06 
OMAHA THEATER CO FOR YOUNG PEOPLE071023322602 300.00 
ROSENBAUM ELECTRIC INC079440322603 6,129.64 
JEAN M RUCHTI072286322605 191.76 
RURAL METRO MEDICAL SERVICES133572322606 1,020.00 
S & W FENCE COMPANY079685322607 1,960.00 
SAGE PUBLICATIONS, INC.081491322608 44.90 
LEONARD E SAGENBRECHT081495322609 49.00 
PATTERSON MEDICAL SUPPLY INC073300322611 957.90 
JOAN M SANDERS081640322612 707.04 
HARLAND TECHNOLOGY SERVICES131353322614 41.50 
BRENT J SCHADE109806322615 49.22 
SCHEMMER ASSOCATES INC081880322616 31,574.30 
SCHOLASTIC INC082100322619 1,041.31 
SCHOOL HEALTH CORPORATION082200322621 886.85 
SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC082350322623 2,789.96 
KIMBERLY A SECORA082905322624 265.17 
SECURITY BENEFIT LIFE INS CO098765322625 369,918.23 
SECURITY BENEFIT LIFE INS CO098765322626 3,038.88 
SECURITY EQUIPMENT INC082910322627 14,075.95 
SEE THE TRAINER134474322628 382.00 
SHARED MOBILITY COACH INC133498322629 2,801.50 
AMY L SHATTUCK109800322630 122.40 
SHEPPARD'S BUSINESS INTERIORS083175322631 7,740.00 
SHIFFLER EQUIPMENT SALES, INC.083188322632 205.65 
SIEMENS INDUSTRY INC.131887322633 5,626.35 
SIMPLEXGRINNELL083400322636 2,118.50 
SKATELAND 132ND INC132108322637 132.00 
SOFTCHOICE CORPORATIONF03032322638 604.44 
LINCOLN OFFICE EQUIPMENT109793322639 66.12 
SOUTH/SOUTHWEST YMCA100421322640 126.00 
JILL C SOUTHWORTH134143322641 17.85 
AMY ST AMOUR109836322642 74.97 
STAFF DEVELOPMENT FOR EDUCATORS101378322643 3,656.00 
STANDARD STATIONERY SUPPLY CO084415322644 1,018.80 
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL INC137481322645 1,051.02 
TRACY L STAUFFER084491322647 172.38 
STEPS TO LITERACY133476322649 327.81 
JASON B STEVENS138586322650 139.61 

20



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  April 4, 2011

Date: 3/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
MEGAN K STUMP137867322652 135.56 
BRAD D SULLIVAN109822322653 250.00 
SKC-SOUTHPORT INC131522322654 466.18 
SUMMIT LEARNING084781322655 76.30 
SUNGARD PUBLIC SECTOR PENTAMATION133207322656 9,000.00 
SUPER DUPER INC084930322657 421.95 
SUPER SAVER #20102869322658 168.68 
SWANDA BUSINESS FORMS130911322659 1,019.72 
CARRIE A SWANEY137011322660 345.78 
SYSCO LINCOLN INC099302322661 577.70 
TARGET088654322662 684.13 
CHILDCRAFT EDUCATION CORPORATION132962322664 233.66 
TENNANT SALES & SERVICE COMPANY133969322666 10,047.96 
THIELE GEOTECH INC108099322668 1,330.00 
THOMPSON PUBLISHING GROUP INC.102713322669 243.95 
LAURIE R THROCKMORTON134962322670 75.30 
TILT GOLF132140322672 267.00 
TIME MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS138304322673 5,622.00 
JEAN M TOOHER106807322674 96.90 
TOSHIBA AMERICA INFO SYS INC131446322675 3,117.89 
TOSHIBA AMERICA INFO SYS INC131446322676 14,654.00 
TOTAL MARKETING INC089574322677 249.38 
TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES132138322678 528.26 
TRADE WELL PALLET INC108055322679 3,000.00 
AMERICAN STANDARD INC106364322680 269.73 
TRANSWORLD SYSTEMS INC138478322681 289.71 
MARIELA J TRIBULATO135247322682 80.00 
KIMBERLY P TRISLER107719322683 49.98 
LYNNE A TRUMAN132268322684 33.15 
AUTO PROS OF MILLARD INC138047322685 108.52 
TY'S OUTDOOR POWER & SERVICE INC135505322686 42.32 
TYCON ELECTRIC INC135716322687 1,058.00 
JEAN R UBBELOHDE131819322688 154.02 
UNISOURCE WORLDWIDE INC090678322689 5,013.94 
UNITED EQUIPMENT SERVICES CO INC109861322690 247.50 
UNITED RENTALS INC134849322691 88.21 
UNIVERSAL INFORMATION SERVICE133435322692 156.00 
UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT OMAHA068840322693 132,500.00 
UNL EXTENSION IN DOUGLAS/SARPY CO100923322694 150.00 
UPSTART090973322695 60.59 
SHARON C VANWINKLE136180322698 32.15 
VOSS ELECTRIC CO092600322699 25.00 
KAREN L WAGNER138598322700 439.45 
BARBARA N WALLER093008322701 61.10 
WARD'S NATURAL SCIENCE EST LLC093650322703 1,656.80 
WATER ENGINEERING, INC.093765322705 2,500.10 

21



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  April 4, 2011

Date: 3/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
JILL E WEDDINGTON132263322706 43.61 
WEEKLY READER CORPORATION093976322707 94.40 
CHERA A WENZL131142322710 11.22 
WEST MUSIC COMPANY094174322711 484.74 
WESTONE LABORATORIES094630322712 68.35 
WESTSIDE COMMUNITY SCHOOLS094650322713 1,300.00 
DEBBY A WHITAKER094751322714 123.88 
WHITE WOLF WEB PRINTERS INC137878322715 1,206.60 
CHRISTINA L WILCOXEN136162322716 53.04 
WILLMER WELDING & FABRICATION LLC138439322717 669.40 
WINSOR LEARNING INC138347322718 493.90 
GLEN E WRAGGE095491322719 283.61 
WURTH BAER SUPPLY CO109852322720 712.11 
XEROX CORPORATION (LEASES)095674322721 11,117.80 
JEFFREY YOST138356322722 31.57 
YOUTHLIGHT INC.101717322723 202.37 
CHAD R ZIMMERMAN137020322725 380.00 
PAUL  R ZOHLEN136855322726 29.07 
LACHELLE ZUHLKE135647322727 32.44 
KAREN S ADAMS133402322728 58.60 
DANIELLE M ANDERSON138548322729 31.42 
JILL M ANDERSON131265322730 30.09 
DIANE ARAUJO133770322731 36.77 
CYNTHIA L BARR-MCNAIR017877322732 33.15 
JULIE K BERGSTROM134884322733 28.13 
NOLAN J BEYER134945322734 337.14 
PEGGY S BREARD136977322735 22.36 
NANCY A BROWN133824322736 19.18 
SCOTT G BUTLER134237322737 21.42 
EILEEN CABRERA137274322738 10.91 
ERIK P CHAUSSEE132271322739 54.06 
DALE CLAUSEN025235322740 124.95 
KAREN J COATES137739322741 22.95 
NANCY S COLE137013322742 60.59 
DAVID J CORK135992322743 18.87 
PAM S D'AMOUR138536322744 33.15 
SABRINA DENNEY BULL135865322745 61.20 
BASTIAN DERICHS137331322746 44.42 
LINDA K DONOHUE135373322747 42.84 
BRADLEY EDMUNDSON134991322748 79.08 
REBECCA S EHRHORN133823322749 307.22 
ERIC L ENGSTROM134883322750 170.04 
ALICIA C FEIST131826322751 24.58 
MARK W FELDHAUSEN040470322752 56.71 
KENNETH J FOSSEN041146322753 95.88 
AMY J FRIEDMAN041543322754 11.78 

22



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  April 4, 2011

Date: 3/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
HARRY S GRIMMINGER130083322755 32.64 
JEAN M HASTINGS136458322756 33.10 
CHARLES E HAYES III132489322757 46.51 
DAVID C HEMPHILL108478322758 116.82 
ROBERT J HETTINGER134455322759 114.75 
RICK W HOOK049330322760 186.15 
LINDA D HORTON095520322761 26.42 
MONICA A HUTFLES134807322762 23.67 
THERESA A ILIFF051575322763 38.43 
HANNELORE W JASA054240322764 139.46 
GEORGE W JELKIN135735322765 68.34 
SUSAN L KELLEY132272322766 18.67 
JULIE B KEMP134801322767 40.29 
ANDREA L KIDD131177322768 20.96 
BRADLEY A KISICKI056742322769 79.56 
LARISSA K KNUDSON135946322770 93.33 
REBECCA J KORINEK138261322771 61.20 
MARY K KREIS130480322772 21.42 
JOSEPH R KUEHL137385322773 113.37 
VICTORIA KYROS132934322774 28.05 
LORENE M LARSEN121124322775 34.27 
JANET L LARSON136518322776 48.28 
JACEN D LEFHOLTZ108450322777 166.52 
NATASHA E LUDWIG134568322778 14.89 
KEITH W MALY138473322779 38.76 
DAWN M MARTEN133201322780 77.93 
RYE L MCINTOSH137014322781 67.93 
PATRICIA A MEEKER121126322782 38.35 
ANGELA R MERCIER017611322783 30.60 
SANDRA R MILLER132412322784 31.93 
DONITA L MOSEMAN132491322785 10.20 
DEVONYE J MULLINS137052322786 134.97 
JANIS R MULLINS066490322787 20.40 
ELIZABETH A PACHTA134428322788 117.71 
ANGELO D PASSARELLI108098322789 389.05 
CYNTHIA L PAVONE135569322790 61.15 
PAULA A PEAL071947322791 34.68 
JANET PELSTER109831322792 53.55 
HEIDI T PENKE107783322793 47.43 
SCOTT D PERSIGEHL138521322794 72.42 
VICKY L PETERSON134365322795 64.77 
MARY J PILLE130721322796 235.30 
ANDREW C PINKALL137722322797 94.35 
MELISSA J POLONCIC136003322798 47.81 
MICHAEL T QUINT136035322799 77.62 
SANDRA L RALYA109143322800 13.26 

23



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  April 4, 2011

Date: 3/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
JENNIFER L REID134858322801 39.42 
KIMBERLI R RICE109192322802 73.13 
WILLIAM S RITCHIE137334322803 41.92 
DALE H ROBINSON079295322804 91.29 
LINDA A ROHMILLER134882322805 16.83 
KATHRYN  I RYAN130477322806 15.30 
THOMAS J RZEMYK136595322807 144.84 
LEONARD E SAGENBRECHT081495322808 11.53 
RYAN D SAUNDERS133389322809 418.32 
KELLI J SCHINSTOCK106432322810 58.14 
STAN J SEGAL108161322811 118.07 
KELLY M SELTING082941322812 141.27 
LARIA K SHEA137697322813 286.88 
LORI L SMITH138275322814 19.89 
CHARLENE S SNYDER107093322815 26.16 
JOHN D SOUTHWORTH131714322816 27.03 
JULIE A STEDNITZ136440322817 19.58 
SUSAN STODDARD138276322818 28.56 
JAMES D SWITZER132417322819 24.99 
GREGORY E TIEMANN132493322820 82.46 
PEGGI S TOMLINSON136578322821 39.12 
DONNA R TROMBLA136110322822 125.41 
LESLIE F VERA130031322823 37.33 
RONALD J WALSH II136166322824 112.20 
LINDA WALTERS131112322825 30.75 
HEIDI J WEAVER133438322826 77.42 
BECKY S WEGNER093978322827 57.17 
CRAIG T WHALEY134658322828 66.49 
STACIE A WITHERSPOON136323322829 77.42 
SUSAN J WOOSTER130716322830 22.70 
TREAVOR D WRAGGE138474322831 60.18 

3,047,998.74 Total for GENERAL FUND
HARLAND CLARKE13560022949 479.61 
NEXTEL PARTNERS INC10984322950 215.05 
OFFICE DEPOT  8413351010001322951 642.89 
SODEXO INC & AFFILIATES10147622952 448,238.23 

449,575.78 Total for FOOD SERVICE 
FUND

A & D TECHNICAL SUPPLY CO INC010040322195 2,142.29 
INDOFF, INC.135502322406 250.40 
SCHEMMER ASSOCATES INC081880322616 3,700.00 
UNISOURCE WORLDWIDE INC090678322689 67.63 

6,160.32 Total for SPECIAL BUILDING 
FUND

AMERICAN MULTI-CINEMA INC108312322169 99.00 
DANIEL P CONWAY138547322170 450.00 
ANGELA M DIEHM133261322171 100.00 

24



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  April 4, 2011

Date: 3/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
HY-VEE INC049850322180 11.65 
CMI EDUCATION INSTITUTE INC133633322182 179.99 
RANDY L SZEMPLENSKI138588322186 150.00 
STEPHEN W. VENTEICHER107354322188 300.00 
JEFF WARNOCK133224322189 150.00 
JUSTIN L WILLIAMSON138537322191 150.00 
DANIEL P WOOTTON138505322192 200.00 
64 FUN LLC137474322207 413.64 
AMERICAN MATHEMATICS COMPETITIONS012067322210 76.00 
ASCD013496322223 3,220.05 
BARNES & NOBLE BOOKSTORE099646322234 47.92 
JOHN R BAYLOR JR135683322240 5,960.00 
JULIE K BERGSTROM134884322242 608.44 
CALLOWAY HOUSE INC023831322258 92.93 
COLLEGE BOARD025455322275 66.50 
CREATIVE MATHEMATICS PTP135028322287 398.00 
CREATIVE TEACHING PRESS INC100300322289 42.18 
DISCOUNT SCHOOL SUPPLY099552322322 1,121.55 
DYNAVOX SYSTEMS LLC107033322331 399.00 
EYE ON EDUCATION099320322346 303.53 
FAT BRAIN TOYS LLC137477322349 182.55 
GOPHER044891322370 242.26 
GREENWOOD PUBLISHING GROUP INC048517322388 295.15 
HUMAN RELATIONS MEDIA049723322399 153.95 
LAIDLAW TRANSIT INC058755322447 2,724.37 
LAKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS099217322448 378.98 
LEGO EDUCATION NORTH AMERICA106469322458 288.90 
MENARDS INC064413322485 170.04 
MINDWARE100316322501 462.21 
NASCO067000322513 282.26 
NEBRASKA ASSOCIATION FOR THE GIFTED068340322524 2,450.00 
NEBRASKA COUNCIL ON ECON ED/SMG068400322525 60.00 
PAULA A PEAL071947322567 28.66 
PIECES OF LEARNING072500322573 66.85 
ALL THE MARBLES LLC137756322576 519.00 
PLASMACAM CUTTING SYSTEM131823322577 8,651.52 
PRUFROCK PRESS INC073650322583 61.80 
REALLY GOOD STUFF INC100642322590 359.19 
REMEDIA PUBLICATIONS078958322593 129.93 
OMAHA THEATER CO FOR YOUNG PEOPLE071023322602 320.00 
SAM'S CLUB DIRECT081630322610 81.84 
WILLIAM M SAUNDERS138494322613 500.00 
SCHOLASTIC BOOK FAIRS099640322617 103.35 
SCHOLASTIC BOOK FAIRS099640322618 200.00 
SCHOLASTIC INC082100322619 300.00 
SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC082350322623 603.52 

25



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  April 4, 2011

Date: 3/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
SIGNAL 88 SECURITY GROUP LLC138176322635 357.00 
STENHOUSE PUBLISHERS131099322648 348.50 
SUPER DUPER INC084930322657 47.80 
TEST MEDICAL SYMPTOMS AT HOME INC133742322667 167.72 
UNL EXTENSION IN DOUGLAS/SARPY CO100923322694 120.00 
UPSTART090973322695 64.59 
VAL LTD091040322697 95.97 
KATELYN WALTER137350322702 180.00 
DODIE A WARREN136140322704 11.56 

35,549.85 Total for GRANT FUND
COVENTRY HEALTH & LIFE INS CO136587322284 144,307.69 

144,307.69 Total for 
APPLE COMPUTER INC012989322217 215.26 
BUSINESS MEDIA INC099431322256 552.00 
CREATIVE SITES LLC138572322288 543.00 
LIFESTYLE DRAPERY SERVICE INC138471322463 2,080.00 
SHIFFLER EQUIPMENT SALES, INC.083188322632 534.35 
SIGN SOLUTIONS INC133575322634 214.00 

4,138.61 Total for DEPRECIATION 
FUND

NEBRASKA DISTRICT NFL109022322139 105.00 
WEST MUSIC COMPANY094174322152 28.04 
DARREL DRAPER107948322172 250.00 
GARRETT ASHBY138007322222 35.00 
B & H PHOTO102727322228 32.90 
BARNES & NOBLE BOOKSTORE099646322234 76.26 
MADISON BESCH138151322245 35.00 
BOUND TO STAY BOUND BOOKS INC019559322251 72.36 
BUSINESS MEDIA INC099431322256 84.00 
MEHGAN CAIN138599322257 87.50 
CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.133589322264 156.00 
KATHERINE CLAASSEN138589322273 40.00 
COMMONWEALTH ELECTRIC130646322278 2,437.82 
EMIL ASSAD102175322281 60.95 
D & D COMMUNICATIONS130731322299 3,185.00 
HEIDI DEMUTH138160322311 202.50 
DICK BLICK CO099220322316 260.63 
ZACH ERIKSEN138591322343 35.00 
JUSTIN FALCK138600322347 45.00 
OLIVIA FISHER138314322358 40.00 
FOLLETT LIBRARY RESOURCES041100322361 30.91 
TAYLOR GILROY138064322368 35.00 
GOPHER044891322370 136.48 
GP DIRECT043609322372 198.32 
JEFF HARRINGTON138597322383 42.00 
LEVI HAWKINS137978322385 108.00 

26



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  April 4, 2011

Date: 3/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
GREENWOOD PUBLISHING GROUP INC048517322388 2,673.00 
MEGAN C HINGER138065322392 60.00 
KAREN ILLG135517322405 42.00 
KAYLEE JOBEUN138370322418 70.00 
MEGAN KAHN138601322426 90.00 
BRAMSTRONG KIM138159322433 82.50 
LAURA KUHN137046322441 35.00 
SAMANTHA LAU138592322453 70.00 
KATELYNN ROSE LEFFLER138368322457 45.00 
JENNA KAYE LEMKAU138013322459 40.00 
KARINA B MARIN138593322475 70.00 
EMILY MCCOY138066322481 35.00 
KATHERINE MCGINN138156322483 50.00 
ALYSSA MERKEL134995322486 55.00 
MIDLAND COMPUTER INC102870322492 106.60 
SATURNRINA LEE MORRIS137111322505 42.50 
GISELLE NEVAREZ138310322530 35.00 
EMMA O'CONNELL136130322535 35.00 
ERIN OELTJEN137588322537 35.00 
OFFICE DEPOT  84133510100013322541 1,191.60 
CAHNER JALINE OLSON138012322544 20.00 
OMAHA SYMPHONY134051322548 276.00 
MATTHEW R OSTDIEK138590322554 37.50 
JERRY REA130904322588 42.00 
JACQUELINE REYES138179322596 60.00 
ROCKBROOK CAMERA CENTER079310322598 389.00 
OMAHA THEATER CO FOR YOUNG PEOPLE071023322602 1,098.75 
RYAN M ROTHMAN138595322604 30.00 
BAILEY SCHOLLMEYER136895322620 70.00 
SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC082350322623 267.90 
SHEPPARD'S BUSINESS INTERIORS083175322631 325.00 
JAKE STAUFFER136465322646 35.00 
BROOKE STILMOCK138198322651 60.00 
TARGET088654322662 188.17 
JACLYN MARIE TAYLOR138602322663 20.00 
KACY THURMAN138067322671 30.00 
SPORT SUPPLY GROUP INC090440322696 476.99 
AMANDA WEIHL135522322708 70.00 
FAWN WEIHL134999322709 42.00 
WEST MUSIC COMPANY094174322711 102.40 
ERICA ZIEMER137589322724 35.00 

16,358.58 Total for ACTIVITY FUND

3,704,089.57 Report Total               

27



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: No Child Left Behind (NCLB) Authorized Representative 
 
 
MEETING DATE:    April 4, 2011 
 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Office of the Superintendent 
 
 
TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:  The Board of Education will authorize Keith Lutz as the 
representative for the No Child Left Behind Grant. 
 
 
ACTION DESIRED:   
 
 
BACKGROUND:   The Nebraska Department of Education requires the Board of Education to 
authorize one person to be the representative for the NCLB application. 
 
 
OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS:  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  To authorize Keith Lutz as the No Child Left Behind Grant 
Representative. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:   
 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION:   
 
TIME LINE:    
 
 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:    
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:  ____________________________________ 

28

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Schedule and Deadline for Submission of Board Vacancy 

Application 
 
MEETING DATE:    April 4, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Office of Superintendent/Board of Education 
 
TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:  The Superintendent will advise the Board of Education of 
the qualifications for the candidates wishing to submit an application for the Board vacancy.  The 
Board will approve the schedule and deadline for the submissions. 
 
ACTION DESIRED:  Approval 
 
BACKGROUND:   In summary, the following are the dates for the time line: 
 
March 25, 2011  Notice of Vacancy is published and distributed to the media and Election 

Commissioners 
April 25, 2011 No later than 4:30 p.m., all applications are due at the Board offices. 
April 26, 2011 Board Secretary (or designee) in corroboration with the Election 

Commissioners, verify signatures for each applicant.  As soon as possible 
thereafter, all applications and petitions are forwarded to Board Members for 
review. 

May 2, 2011 Reduction of applicants down to five (5) finalists (if necessary). 
May 3, 2011 All candidates notified whether or not they were selected as a finalist. 
May 9, 2011 Interview each of the finalists (30 minutes each). 
May 16, 2011 Board takes action by roll call vote to appoint the new board member. 
 
OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS:  

RECOMMENDATIONS:  To approve the schedule and deadline for submission of Board 
vacancy application. 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:   
 
IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION:   
 
TIME LINE:   Deadline is April 25, 2011 at 4:30 p.m. 
 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Keith Lutz, Superintendent 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:  ____________________________________ 

29

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Bylaws of the Board   
 

School Board Vacancies - Procedure for Filling      9100.1 
 
 
When a vacancy exists on the Millard Board of Education it shall be filled as provided by law and by the following 
procedures. 
 
1. At the first regular meeting of the Board after the vacancy exists, the Superintendent shall provide the legal 

qualifications for appointment to the Board, the length of the term remaining, and a proposed schedule for 
receiving applications for appointment to the vacancy. 

 
2 The Board at that meeting shall establish the final date for filing of applications, which date shall be no 

sooner than 30 days after the publication of notice in a legal newspaper announcing the existence of the 
vacancy, qualifications for the position and inviting applications for appointment to fill the vacancy, and 
communication to the news media notifying the public of the existence of the vacancy and the final date for 
the filing of application to fill the vacancy. 

 
3. The Board will establish the form applications shall take, including: 

 
a) a resume containing routine personal data (name, address, telephone numbers, etc.) a summary of the 

candidates education and experience, and a statement indicating why they are qualified for 
appointment to the Board; and, 

 
 b) a petition signed by at least 50 (fifty) registered voters from the Millard District, using a petition 

available from the Secretary of the Millard Board of Education. 
 
4. Completed applications will be filed with Secretary of the Millard Board of Education no later than 4:30 

pm on the date applications are due.  The documents will be date stamped and reviewed for compliance 
with these procedures. 

 
5. The Secretary of the Millard Board of Education will, in conjunction with the Douglas and Sarpy County 

Election Commissioners, review the petitions and determine if 50 or more registered voters of Millard 
School District 17 have supported each applicant.  The Board Secretary will notify each applicant whether 
their petition was valid or invalid. 

 
6. The Secretary of the Millard Board of Education will forward copies of the resumes and petitions to each 

member of the Board as each eligibility determination is made.  Unless more time is needed to verify the 
petitions, all resumes and petitions will be sent to Board members within seven days of the application 
deadline.  Board members will review the resumes in the form they are received. 

 
7. At the next regular meeting of the Board following the identification of all qualified candidates, if the 

number of candidates exceeds five, the list of candidates shall be reduced to five finalists.  Each Board 
member shall vote for five candidates to be finalists for the position.  The vote will be by roll call.  Only 
persons submitting resumes and valid petitions may receive votes.  The five candidates receiving the most 
total votes will be finalists for appointment.  In the event of a tie for the fifth position, the Board will 
reconsider only those candidates tied for fifth in order to break the tie.  Tie-breaking votes shall be by 
secret ballot. 

 
8. The Superintendent shall notify, by telephone, all candidates as to whether they received sufficient support 

to become a finalist for the position. 
 
9. At the next meeting of the Board Committee of the Whole following the selection of the finalists, the Board 

will interview the finalists.  Approximately 30 minutes will be allowed for each candidate.  The candidates 
will be asked to make a maximum five-minute statement concerning their qualifications, followed by a 25-

30



minute question and answer period.  The order of appearance of the candidates will be determined by a 
random drawing prior to publishing the meeting agenda. 

  
10. The election of the new Board member will be placed on the agenda of the next regularly scheduled Board 

meeting following the interviews.  The election will be by roll call from the names of the candidates 
interviewed without nominations from the floor.  Voting will continue until one candidate receives a 
majority votes.  When the tally determines an applicant has been selected for appointment to the Board, the 
vote and the appointment shall be ratified by a roll call vote. 

 
11. The Board’s legal counsel, with the assistance of the office of the superintendent, shall oversee the conduct 

of the election and the tally of the votes.  The ballots shall become a part of the records of the District. 
 
School Board Office Vacancies - Procedure for Filling 
 
Should a vacancy exist in one of the offices specified in Bylaw 9111, the office will be filled at the next regular 
meeting of the Board using the procedure specified in Rule 9111.1. 
 
 
Related Policies and Rules:  9100, 9111, 9111.1 
 
Bylaw Adopted: January 27, 1997 Millard Public Schools 
Revised: July 7, 1997; June 16, 2003 Omaha, NE 
Renumbered from 9111.1: June 16, 2003 

31



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Rule 3215.1  Support Services – Business – Students - Tuition 
 
MEETING DATE: April 4, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Rule 3215.1  Support Services – Business – Students – Tuition:  The revision of 

the District’s rule regarding tuition for students who do not qualify for free tuition. 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval      x        Discussion             Information Only                                      .       
 
BACKGROUND: This is the revision of an existing rule.  The language in the revision is similar to 

that of the existing rule, however, it is a bit more precise. 
 
  
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that approval be given to revised Rule 3215.1 as submitted. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: Immediate 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

32

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Support Services - Business          
   
 
Students - Tuition Fees 
 
Non-Residents 3215.1 
 
 
Any student who does not qualify for free tuition shall be charged tuition in an amount equal to 
the “Annual Cost Per Pupil ADM” contained in the most recent Annual Financial Report filed 
with the Nebraska Department of Education.  Tuition charges will be based upon 100 percent of 
the current actual costs per pupil as determined by the office of the superintendent.  Non-resident 
tuition fees mustOne-half of such tuition shall be paid to the District before such student is 
admitted to classes each semester.  be paid by the quarter with said payment preceding a 
student’s admission to classes.  Exceptions to the quarterly payment procedures may be allowed 
when: 
 
1. a
 student’s tuition fees are paid by the school district in which the student resides; 
 
2. a
 student’s tuition fees are waived by the Office of the Superintendent. 
 
 
Legal Reference: Ne.b Rev. Stat. §79-215RRS §79-445 Non-resident students; admission; 
tuition; persons exempt 
 Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-5,104 
 
Rule Approved:  April 7, 1975 Millard Public Schools 
Rule Revised:     April 4, 2011 Omaha, NE 
 

33



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Policy 3225 – Support Services – Business – Property – Sale & Disposal 
 
MEETING DATE: April 4, 2011 & April 18, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Policy 3225 – Support Services – Business – Property – Sale & Disposal:  The 

revision of the District’s policy regarding the sale and disposal of unused property. 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval     x         Discussion             Information Only                                      .       
 
BACKGROUND: This is a revision of the District’s existing policy regarding the sale of unused 

property.  The two major clarifications/revisions are: (1) sales may be made via 
online auctions like e-Bay and (2) the board treasurer’s report will list unused 
property before it is scheduled for sale. 

 
  
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended (after second reading) that revised Policy 3225 be approved as 

submitted. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: Immediate 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

34

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Support Services - BusinessBusiness and Non-Instructional Operations 
 
Property – Sales & DisposalSale of Books, Supplies and Equipment   3225 
 
The superintendent (or designee) shall be authorized to sell or otherwise dispose of any unused 
property or equipment in the District.  Prior to such sale, the unused property or equipment shall 
be presented to the Board in the District Treasurer’s Report. 
 
The superintendent (or designee) shall select a method of sale that is likely to produce the 
greatest return for the district.  Such method may include, but is not necessarily limited to, local 
public auctions, online electronic auctions, negotiations, or trade-ins.  If, after due diligence, it is 
determined that an item has no monetary value, the item may be recycled or otherwise disposed 
of. 
 
The proceeds from the sale of property shall be applied first to the costs associate with the sale.  
The remaining balance, if any, shall be receipted into District funds as directed by the 
superintendent (or designee). 
 
The superintendent (or designee) may promulgate administrative procedures to further the 
implementation of this policy. 
 
The Office of the Superintendent or its designee, in compliance with applicable law, shall be authorized to determine 
any continued useful life or application of depreciated, outmoded, damaged, and otherwise obsolete district property 
and shall further be authorized to determine appropriate methods of disposal, whether it be by sale, auction, 
donation, destruction, or other means.  When such disposals occur, appropriate administrative procedures shall be 
followed and all disposals shall be reported and any proceeds surrendered to the Office of the Superintendent. 
 
Other Policies & Rules:  3225R1 
 
Legal Reference:  Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-10,114 RRS §79-521 
 
Policy Adopted:  April 7, 1975       Millard Public Schools 
Revised:  March 7, 1994                           Omaha NE 
Revised:  April ___, 2011 
 

35



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Policy 3230 – Support Services – Sales and Rentals of Property 
 
MEETING DATE: April 4, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Policy 3230 – Support Services – Sales and Rentals of Property:  The deletion of a 

policy now covered by other policies. 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval      x        Discussion             Information Only                                      .       
 
BACKGROUND: Policy 3230 is an old policy that is now covered by other District policies related 

to the facility use and the sale and disposal of unused property. 
 
  
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that Policy 3230 be deleted 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE:  
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

36

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Business             
 
Sales and Rentals of Property 3230 
 
 
All sales and rentals of school district property except rentals of existing school plants shall be approved by the 
Board in a regularly scheduled meeting.  Such transactions must be conducted in conformity with state law and 
serve to forward the educational opportunity of the district’s students. 
 
 
 
Policy Adopted:  April 7, 1975 Millard Public Schools 
 Omaha NE 
 

37



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Rule 3225.1 – Business and Non-Instructional Operations – Library Media 
 
MEETING DATE: April 4, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Rule 3225.1 – Business and Non-Instructional Operations – Library Media:  The 

deletion of an old policy related to the disposal of unused library materials. 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval      x        Discussion             Information Only                                      .       
 
BACKGROUND: Rule 3225.1 is a rule related to the disposal of unused library equipment and 

materials.  With the revision of Policy 3225 related to the sale of unused property, 
this rule is no longer needed. 

 
 Educational Services and the library media director intend to take the substantive 

portions of Rule 3225.1 and incorporate them into media center procedures. 
 
  
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that Rule 3225.1 be deleted. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: Immediate 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

38



Business and Non-Instructional Operations 
 
Library Media          3225.1 
 
Disposal of Discarded or Withdrawn Library Media Resources 
 
After withdrawing library media resources from the collection, library media specialists shall proceed as follows: 
 

1. Box the discarded materials and forward to the District Processing Center.  A detailed list of the 
included items shall accompany each carton, listing author, title, and call number. 

 
2. District Processing Center personnel shall remove the withdrawn items from the electronic database. 

 
3. Withdrawn materials shall be classified and materials deemed suitable for potential future sale or 

donation shall be retained until the means of final disposal is determined. 
 

4. Final disposal of withdrawn materials will occur a minimum of one time a year through a public sale, 
or auction.  Monies received will be surrendered to the Office of the Superintendent.  If a buyer is not 
available, materials may be donated to civic or service agency.  Those materials not sold or accepted 
for donation shall be disposed of through other district means. 

 
Disposition/Disposal of Unused Texts 
 
When textbooks have gone out of adoption or have otherwise been determined as surplus, the following procedures 
will be followed: 
 

1. Books shall be sorted and boxed by title and grade level (elementary) or by course/discipline 
(secondary) and sent to the Support Service Center. 

 
2. Buyers of used books shall be contacted and the books offered for sale. 

 
3. Proposals for purchase received from book buyers will be evaluated and the best proposal identified, 

i.e., price to be received, amount of handling involved for district personnel, percentage of books 
available to be taken, time frame for disposal. 

 
4. Books will be sold to vendor submitting best proposal and monies received will be surrendered to the 

Office of the Superintendent. 
 

5. If no purchasing interest is realized then the books shall be disposed of by recycling, destroyed by 
dumping, or other means as may be determined. 

 
Disposal of Obsolete/Unused/Surplus Equipment or Materials 
 
Equipment or materials, which are no longer needed or are unusable in the operation of the district, should be 
removed from the district in order to maintain a safe, clean, and uncluttered environment and to eliminate the 
necessity for storage of nonfunctional property.  Such equipment may include instructional or office equipment, 
furniture, vehicles, fixtures, maintenance devices, etc.  The Assistant Superintendent for Auxiliary Services, or a 
designated representative shall determine the surplus status of any designated piece of equipment.  Surplus items 
may be disposed of at public auction or an announced public sale. 
 

1. Building principals shall notify Support Service Center when equipment may be eligible for surplus 
status.  Such equipment will be removed from the building and relocated to other district facilities 
while the disposal status and process are being determined. 

 

39



2. Support Service Center Personnel will remove (where applicable) the surplus equipment information 
from the electronic district equipment inventory database. 

 
3. Surplus equipment or materials shall be classified and such equipment or materials that may be 

deemed suitable for potential sale shall be retained until the means of final disposal is determined. 
 

4. The need for a surplus equipment auction will be determined by the Office of the Assistant 
Superintendent for Auxiliary Services as amassed quantities of surplus equipment warrant. 

 
5. An auctioneer will be contracted by the district to conduct the surplus equipment auction.  

Advertisement and coordination of the auction is the responsibility of the auctioneer. 
 

6. Proceeds of any public sale or auction will be remitted to the Office of the Superintendent. 
 

7. Equipment deemed as having no potential resale value will be disposed of by salvage, dumping, or 
other means as may be determined. 

 
Other Policies & Rules:  3225 
 
Rules Adopted:  March 7, 1994                          Millard Public Schools 
Revised:                    Omaha NE 
 
 

40



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Delete Policy 5141 and Rule 5141.1 Pupil Services – Management of Funds 
 
MEETING DATE: April 14, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Delete Policy 5141 and Rule 5141.1 – Pupil Services – Management of Funds 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval     x         Discussion             Information Only                                      .       
 
BACKGROUND: This old policy and rule are in the Pupil Services section of board policies.  The 

contents of both the policy and the rule have been superseded by NDE Rule 2 
(Uniform System of Accounting) and the District’s accounting procedures.  

 
  
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that Policy 5141 and Rule 5141.1 be deleted. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: Immediate 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

41

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Students  
 

Management of Funds 5141 
 

The accounting system for managing student funds shall be designed to yield the largest possible educational return 
to pupils without sacrificing the safety of funds, or exposing pupils to undue responsibility or unnecessary routine. 
 
The administration is charged with the responsibility for making rules, regulations and procedures for the conduct, 
operation and maintenance of extra-curricular accounts, and for the safeguarding, accounting and audit of all monies 
received and derived therefrom. 
 
In the event a class graduates and leaves unexpected and uncommitted funds, they may revert to student council 
funds. 
 
Legal Reference:  RRS 79-546 Class II, III, IV, V, and VI districts audit by public accountant or certified public 

accountant; rules and regulations 
 
Policy Adopted:  February 4, 1974 Millard Public Schools 
Revised:                     Omaha, NE 

42



Students  
 

Management of Funds 5141.1 
 

All financial management of student body funds shall be the responsibility of the school principal.  However, it is 
necessary that records be maintained to insure periodic inspection by the school corporation and the annual audit by 
outside auditors. 
 
All student body organizations should maintain simplified accounts under a uniform system whereby the maximum 
participation of students is assured under the supervision of faculty financial advisors. 
 
Legal Reference:  RRS 79-546 Class II, III, IV, V, and VI districts audit by public accountant or certified public 

accountant; rules and regulations 
 
Rule Approved:  February 4, 1974 Millard Public Schools 
Revised: Omaha, NE 

43



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM:     Rule 5400.6 
 
MEETING DATE:     April 4, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT:     Pupil Services  
 
TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:       Standards for Student Conduct 
 
 
ACTION DESIRED:    Approval 
 
BACKGROUND:  The student code of conduct is brought before the 

board annually for approval. This year there are 
minor adjustments being made relative to 
“possession of medications” at the middle and high 
school levels. Minor adjustments have also been 
made to the “damage to property” portion of the 
code. 

 
OPTIONAL/ALTERNATIVE 
CONSIDERATIONS:    N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:    Approval 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  N/A 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION 
OR REJECTION:     Approving the changes will enable us to enter the  

   revised rule into the 2011-12 student handbooks  
      which will be printed in early June. 
 
TIMELINE:  The revised Standards for Student Conduct will take 

effect on August 10, 2011. 
 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Dr. Kraig J. Lofquist, Director of Pupil Services 
 
DIRECTOR, HUMAN RESOURCES:      Dr. Jim Sutfin 
 
SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:  _________________________________ 

44

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Pupil Services 
 

Standards for Student Conduct  

 5400.6 
I. Introduction. 

A. Policy Statement.  Every Millard School District student has the right to an education.  The 

following Standards have been instituted to ensure that right.  Each student and their parents are 

required, on their own, to become familiar with these Standards, and to help provide an 

atmosphere conducive to learning. 

B. Grounds for Exclusion.  A student may be excluded from school if there is reasonable evidence 

that the student has committed a prohibited act listed below while on school grounds, in a vehicle 

owned, leased, or contracted by a school being used for a school purpose or in a vehicle being 

driven for a school purpose by a school employee or by his or her designee, or at a school-

sponsored activity or athletic event, or any other place where the governing law permits the 

District to discipline students for prohibited conduct. 

C. Exclusion from School Grounds and Activities.  A student who is excluded from school for a 

suspension or expulsion shall not enter upon district property, or ride in a vehicle owned, leased, 

or contracted by the District being used for a school purpose or in a vehicle being driven for a 

school purpose by a school employee or his or her designee, or participate in or attend a school-

sponsored activity or athletic event.  Expelled students may enter upon District property for the 

sole purpose of attending alternative education at a location and time designated by the Director of 

Pupil Services. 

D. Length of Expulsions.  Unless specified otherwise within these Standards, the expulsion of a 

student shall be for a period not to exceed the remainder of the semester in which it took effect 

unless the misconduct occurred within ten (10) school days prior to the end of the first semester, in 

which case the expulsion shall remain in effect through the second semester, or within ten (10) 

school days prior to the end of the second semester, in which case the expulsion shall remain in 

effect for summer school and the first semester of the following school year.  Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-

283(2). 

E. Contact of Legal Authorities.  The principal of a school or the principal’s designee shall notify as 

soon as possible the appropriate law enforcement authorities, of the county or city in which the 

school is located, of any act of a student described in Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-267 which the principal 

or designee knows or suspects is a violation of the Nebraska Criminal Code. Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-

293(1).  

F. Sanction to be Followed.  If minimum and maximum sanctions are not specified for a specific 

prohibited act, the recommended sanction shall be imposed.  

G. Expulsion as Sanction. Expulsion is specified as a sanction for particular conduct because the 

District’s Board of Education finds that the type of conduct for which expulsion is specified has 

the potential to seriously affect the health, safety, or welfare of the student, other students, staff 

members, or other persons, or to otherwise seriously interfere with the educational process. Neb. 

Rev. Stat. §79-262(1). 

H. Students with Disabilities.  Disciplinary procedures for students who have disabilities as defined 

by the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 

1973 shall be subject to the disciplinary procedures set forth in District rules 5400.2 and 5400.3 

and applicable federal and state law.   

I. Mandatory Compliance.  Students and their parent(s) or guardian(s) are hereby notified that 

compliance with the District’s Standards for Student Conduct is mandatory.  It is the responsibility 

of all students and their parent(s) or guardian(s) to become familiar with these Standards. 

 

 

45



II. Violations Against Persons. 

A. Use of Violence.  Use of violence, force, coercion, threat, intimidation or similar conduct in a 

manner that constitutes a substantial interference with school purposes. 

1. Pushing, Shoving or Related Noninjurious Behaviors. 

a. Maximum Sanction.  Short-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular 

activities during time of suspension. 

2. Fighting.  Mutual attempt to physically harm another person through mutual combative 

physical contact.  

a. First offense. 

(1) Minimum Sanction.  Short-term suspension.  Suspension from 

extracurricular activities during time of suspension.  There is no 

mandated minimum sanction below grade six (6). 

(2) Maximum Sanction.  Long-term suspension.  Suspension from 

extracurricular activities during time of suspension.  

(3) Mandatory Action.  Legal authorities shall be contacted.  Neb. Rev. 

Stat. §§ 79-267(1) and 293. 

b. Two offenses or more. 

(1) Minimum Sanction.  Long-term suspension.  Suspension from 

extracurricular activities during time of suspension. 

(2) Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular 

activities during time of expulsion.  

(3) Mandatory Action.  Legal authorities shall be contacted.  Neb. Rev. 

Stat. §§79-267(1) and 293. 

3. Physical Assault.  Initiation of a violent act against another person through aggressive 

physical contact.  

a. Minimum Sanction.  Long-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular 

activities during time of suspension.  There is no mandated minimum sanction 

below grade six (6). 

b. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities 

during time of expulsion. 

c. Mandatory Action.  Legal authorities shall be contacted. Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-

267(1) and 293. 

B. Physical Injury to District Employees, Volunteers, and Students.  Causing or attempting to cause 

personal injury to an employee, a school volunteer, or to any student.  Personal injury caused by 

accident, self-defense, or other action undertaken on the reasonable belief that it was necessary to 

protect some other person shall not constitute a violation of this provision. Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-

267(3). 

1. Sanctions on School Grounds. 

a. Minimum Sanction.  Long-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular 

activities during time of suspension.   

b. Mandatory Action.  Legal authorities shall be contacted.  Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-

267(3) and 293. 

46



2. Sanctions off School Grounds.  

a. First Offense. Citation during academic school year or the student admits that he 

or she has violated subsection II(B). Suspension from extracurricular activities 

for remainder of the semester or nineteen (19) school days, whichever is more. 

b. Second Offense. Suspension for extracurricular activities for one (1) year. Prior 

violations of II(B) on or off school grounds will be included as previous 

offenses. 

C. Use of Threats or Intimidation. 

1. Use of Threats (Verbal and Written).  All threats, including those alleged to be jokes, will 

always be taken seriously and are subject to the following disciplinary action. 

a. Level One Threat.  Using a threat as part of a common expression or in a context 

that the recipient does not feel threatened, frightened, or coerced (e.g., “Oh, I 

could just kill you for that” or “I will punch you in the nose”). 

(1) Maximum Sanction.  Short-term suspension.  Suspension from 

extracurricular activities during time of suspension. 

b. Level Two Threat.  Using an expression or an implied or veiled threat with the 

intent of threatening, frightening, or coercing another and the recipient feels 

threatened, frightened, or coerced (e.g., “I will kill you.”). 

(1) Minimum Sanction.  Short-term suspension.  Suspension from 

extracurricular activities during time of suspension.  There is no 

mandated minimum sanction below grade four (4). 

(2) Maximum Sanction.  Long-term suspension.  Suspension from 

extracurricular activities during time of suspension. 

(3) Mandatory Action.  Legal authorities shall be contacted.  Neb. Rev. 

Stat. §§79-267(1) and 293. 

c. Level Three Threat.  Threatening to kill or injure another person or threatening 

to damage property with potential for personal injury, without possessing a 

weapon or other object that could kill or injure the threatened or intimidated 

person, and the student describes how it will be done, including any threats that 

concern dangerous chemical substances, biochemical attacks, or bioterrorism. 

(1) Minimum Sanction.  Long-term suspension.  Suspension from 

extracurricular activities during time of suspension.  There is no 

mandated minimum sanction below grade four (4). 

(2) Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular 

activities during time of expulsion. 

(3) Mandatory Action.  Legal authorities shall be contacted.  Neb. Rev. 

Stat. §§79-267(1) and 293. 

d. Threatening with an Object.  Threatening with an object which looks like a 

weapon or an object that could be used to injure someone.  To qualify as a look-

a-like weapon, the object must closely resemble a real weapon in size, shape, 

and color even when examined up close. 

(1) Minimum Sanction.  Long-term suspension.  Suspension from 

extracurricular activities during time of the suspension. 

(2) Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular 

activities during time of expulsion. 

47



(3) Mandatory Action.  Legal authorities shall be contacted.  Neb. Rev. 

Stat. §§79-267(1) and 293. 

2. Bomb Threat (Verbal or Written).  Threatening to use any type of explosive or incendiary 

device generally referred to as a bomb to injure a person(s) or destroy property.   

a. Minimum Sanction.  Mandatory expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular 

activities during time of expulsion.  

b. Mandatory Action.  Legal authorities shall be contacted.  Neb. Rev. Stat. §28-

1221; Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-267(1) and 293. 

D. Firearms, Explosives, and Weapons. 

1. Firearms, Etc.  Knowingly possessing, handling, transmitting, using, intimidating with, or 

threatening with any firearm, explosive, destructive device, pipe bomb, or stun gun.  For 

purposes of this subsection II (D)(1), firearm means any weapon, including a starter gun, 

which will or is designed to or may readily be converted to expel a projectile by the 

action of an explosive, or the frame or receiver of any such weapon, or any firearm 

muffler or firearm silencer, or any destructive device.  Such term does not include an 

antique firearm. 

a. Sanctions on School Grounds. 

(1) Minimum Sanction.  Mandatory expulsion for one (1) year.  

Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of expulsion. 

(2) Mandatory Action.  Legal authorities shall be contacted.  Neb. Rev. 

Stat. §§ 28-1202 to 1204.04, 1215, 1216 and: 1220 Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 

79-267 (5) and 293. 

b. Sanctions off School Grounds. 

(1) Citation for illegal possession of a weapon during academic school 

year or the student admits that he or she has violated subsection II(D).  

Suspension from extracurricular activities for one (1) year.   

2. Use and Possession of Other Guns. Using, intimidating with, threatening with, possessing 

on one’s person, handling or transmitting any paint ball gun, air soft gun, B.B. gun, or 

pellet gun. 

a. Sanctions on School Grounds. 

(1) Minimum Sanction.  Mandatory expulsion for one (1) year.  

Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of expulsion. 

(2) Mandatory Action.  Legal authorities shall be contacted.  Neb. Rev. 

Stat. §§ 28-1202 to 1204.04, 1215, 1216 and: 1220 Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 

79-267 (5) and 293. 

b. Sanctions off School Grounds. 

(1) Citation for illegal possession of a weapon during academic school 

year or the student admits that he or she has violated subsection II(D).  

Suspension from extracurricular activities for one (1) year.   

3. Possession of Other Guns in Vehicles.  Possessing any paint ball gun, air soft gun, B.B. 

gun or pellet gun in any vehicle on school grounds, provided that any such gun is not in 

any manner handled either within or outside of the vehicle. 

a. Minimum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities 

during time of expulsion. 

48



4. Other Weapons.  Using or threatening with a knife, throwing star, brass knuckles, 

chemical substances (including, but not limited to, mace, pepper guns, and bleach), and 

any other object that could be used to injure a person.  

a. Sanctions on School Grounds. 

(1) Minimum Sanction.  Mandatory expulsion.  Suspension from 

extracurricular activities during time of expulsion. 

(2) Mandatory Action.  Legal authorities shall be contacted.  Neb. Rev. 

Stat. §§28-1202 to 1204.04; Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-267 (5) and 293. 

b. Sanctions off School Grounds. 

(1) Citation during academic school year or the student admits that he or 

she has violated subsection II(D).  Suspension from extracurricular 

activities for one (1) year. 

5. Possession of Certain Prohibited Objects.  Knowingly possessing, handling, or 

transmitting knives, throwing stars, brass knuckles, or other objects not enumerated 

above which could cause injury. 

a. Minimum Sanction.  Short-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular 

activities during time of suspension. 

b. Maximum Sanction.  Long-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular 

activities during time of suspension. 

6. Possession of Look-a-Like Weapons.  Possessing a look-a-like weapon, the object must 

closely resemble a real weapon in size, shape, and color even when examined up close. 

a. Minimum Sanction.  Short-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular 

activities during time of suspension. 

b. Maximum Sanction.  Long-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular 

activities during time of suspension. 

7. Exception for Certain Firearms.  Subsection II(D) shall not apply to:  

a. The issuance of firearms to or possession of firearms by members of the Reserve 

Officers Training Corps when training; or  

b. Firearms which may lawfully be possessed by the person receiving instruction 

under the immediate supervision of an adult instructor who may lawfully 

possess firearms.  

c. Firearms and guns which may lawfully be possessed and used off school 

grounds, not at a school function, activity, or event. 

E. Extortion.  Threatening or intimidating any student for the purpose of or with the intent of 

obtaining money or anything of value from such student. 

1. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities during time 

of expulsion.  

2. Mandatory Action.  Legal authorities shall be contacted.  Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-267(4) 

and 293. 

F. Sexual Assault or Attempted Sexual Assault.  Any sexual assault or attempt to sexually assault 

any person.  Sexual assault shall mean sexual assault in the first or second degree as defined in 

Neb. Rev. Stat. §§28-319 and 320 or sexual assault of a child in the first, second or third degree as 

defined in Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 28-319.01 and 320.01.  Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-267(9). 

49



1. Sanctions on School Grounds. 

a. Minimum Sanction.  Mandatory expulsion for one (1) year.  Suspension from 

extracurricular activities during time of expulsion.   

b. Mandatory Action.  Legal authorities shall be contacted.  Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-

267(9) and 293. 

2. Sanctions off School Grounds. 

a. Minimum Sanction.  Suspension from extracurricular activities for one (1) year.  

b. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion for one (1) year.  A complaint must have been 

filed by a prosecutor in a court of competent jurisdiction alleging that the 

student has sexually assaulted or attempted to sexually assault any person off 

school grounds not at a school function, activity, or event, and the student’s 

presence at school has a direct and immediate effect on maintaining discipline, 

order, or safety in the school.  Sexual assault shall mean sexual assault in the 

first degree as defined in Neb. Rev. Stat. §§28-319, sexual assault in the second 

degree as defined in Neb. Rev. Stat. §28-320, sexual assault of a child in the 

second or third degree as defined in Neb. Rev. Stat. §28-320.01, or sexual 

assault of a child in the first degree as defined in Neb. Rev. Stat. §28-319.01, as 

such statutes now provide or may hereafter be amended  Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-

267(9). 

G. Sexual Contact.  The intentional touching of another person’s sexual or intimate parts or the 

intentional touching of another person’s clothing covering the immediate area of the other 

person’s sexual or intimate parts, without the consent of the other person.  Sexual contact also 

includes the non-consensual touching by the other person of the actor’s sexual or intimate parts or 

the clothing covering the immediate area of the actor’s sexual or intimate parts when such 

touching is intentionally caused by the actor.  The sexual contact must be such that it can be 

reasonably construed as being for the purpose of sexual arousal or gratification of either party.  

Neb. Rev. Stat. §§28-318 and 320. 

1. Sanctions on School Grounds. 

a. Minimum Sanction.  Short-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular 

activities during time of suspension.   

b. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities 

during time of expulsion.   

c. Mandatory Action.  Legal authorities must be contacted upon the request of the 

offended party.  Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-293. 

2. Sanctions off School Grounds. 

a. Citation during academic school year or the student admits that he or she has 

violated subsection II(G).  Suspension from extracurricular activities for one (1) 

year. 

H. Sexual Harassment.  Unwanted or unwelcome activity of a sexual nature which materially 

interferes with or substantially disrupts the educational process.  This may include, but is not 

limited to, unwanted touching, pinching, patting, verbal comments of a sexual nature, sexual 

name-calling, pressure to engage in sexual activity, repeated propositions, written messages, notes, 

cartoons or graffiti of a sexual nature, and unwanted body contact. 

1. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities during time 

of expulsion.   

 

50



I. Harassment.  Any intentionally hurtful, demeaning, or disparaging acts, words, symbolic 

representations, or behavior used by a student or students against another student or students that 

is disruptive of the educational process.  This includes, but is not limited to, verbal, physical, 

visual, or graphic actions such as name-calling, taunting, mocking, slandering, humiliating, 

defaming, teasing, pestering; and making derogatory remarks, demeaning jokes, disparaging 

drawings or notes. 

1. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities during time 

of expulsion. 

J. Bullying.  Any intentionally hostile or offensive verbal, written, graphic, demonstrative, or 

physical act that has the purpose of exerting domination over another student through the act of 

intimidating, frightening, oppressing, or adversely controlling the student, and that is disruptive of 

the educational process or any ongoing pattern of physical, verbal, written, graphic, demonstrative 

or electronic abuse, on school grounds, in a vehicle owned, leased, or contracted by a school being 

used for a school purpose by a school employee or his or her designee, or at school-sponsored 

activities or school-sponsored athletic events.  This may include, but is not limited to, verbal, 

graphic, written or electronic activities such as name-calling, taunting, blackmailing, inciting to 

fight, terrorizing, or physical or demonstrative activities such as poking, blocking or impeding, 

following, hair pulling, mock hitting motions, intentionally bumping, tripping, and damaging 

clothing. 

1. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities during time 

of expulsion. 

K. Hazing. Any activity by which a person intentionally or recklessly endangers the physical or 

mental health or safety of an individual for the purpose of initiation into, admission into, affiliation 

with, or continued membership with or participation in any group or activity. Such hazing activity 

shall include, but shall not be limited to the following: whipping; beating; branding; forced and 

prolonged calisthenics; prolonged exposure to the elements; forced consumption of any food, 

liquor, beverage, drug, or harmful substance not generally intended for human consumption; 

prolonged sleep deprivation; harassing by exacting unnecessary or disagreeable work, banter, 

ridicule, or criticism; or any brutal treatment or the performance of any unlawful act which 

endangers the physical or mental health or safety of any person. Consent to the hazing by the 

student(s) shall not be a defense to hazing. 

1. Maximum Sanction. Expulsion. Suspension from extracurricular activities during time of 

expulsion. 

III. Violations Against Public Health and Safety. 

A. Possession of Alcohol or other Drugs.  Possession or use of an illegal narcotic drug, controlled 

substance, mood-altering or behavior-affecting substance, or look-a-like substance, or possession 

or use of a prescribed medication by a student for whom the prescribed medication was not 

prescribed; or possession or use of drug paraphernalia.  Possession or use of alcohol or an alcohol-

containing beverage or liquor capable of human consumption. 

1. Sanctions on School Grounds.  

a. First Offense.  Suspension for nineteen (19) school days.  Suspension from 

extracurricular activities while not in school due to the suspension.  Parents, at 

their own expense, may choose to participate in a District-approved suspension 

reduction program.  Successful completion of this program may reduce the 

suspension and curtailment of extracurricular activities by a maximum of nine 

(9) school days (results in a total of ten (10) days out of school).   

b. Second Offense. Mandatory expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular 

activities during time of expulsion.  Prior violations of subsection III(A) on or 

off school grounds will be included as previous offenses. 

 

51



c. Mandatory Action.  Legal authorities shall be contacted. Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-

267(6) and 293. 

2. Sanctions off School Grounds. 

a. Citation during academic school year or the student admits that he or she has 

violated subsection III(A).  Curtailment of extracurricular activities for nineteen 

(19) school days.  

(1) First Offense.  Parents, at their own expense, may choose to participate 

in a District-approved suspension reduction program.  Successful 

completion of this program may reduce the curtailment of 

extracurricular activities by a maximum of nine (9) school days 

(results in a total of ten (10) school days curtailment of extracurricular 

activities).  Previous offenses of subsection III(A) on or off school 

grounds during the current academic school year would not allow 

participation in this option. 

(2) Second Offense. Suspension from extracurricular activities for one (1) 

year.   

B. Distribution of Alcohol or other Drugs.  Distribution or attempted distribution to any other person, 

of any illegal narcotic drug, controlled substance, look-a-like substance, mood-altering or behavior 

affecting substance, drug paraphernalia, or alcohol. 

1. Sanctions on School Grounds. 

a. First Offense.  Mandatory expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities 

during time of expulsion.  

b. Mandatory Action.  Legal authorities shall be contacted.  Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-

267(6) and 293. 

2. Sanctions off School Grounds. 

a. Citation during academic school or the student admits that he or she has violated 

subsection III(B).  Curtailment of extracurricular activities for one (1) year.  

C. Possession, Use and Transportation of Medications.  The possession, use, and transportation of 

prescribed and non-prescribed medications shall be in accordance with the following rules. 

1. Possession of Medications (Preschool and Elementary Levels).  Possession of prescribed 

or non-prescribed medications, or possession of prescribed or non-prescribed medications 

on school grounds or during transportation to and from school, is prohibited.  Elementary 

school students may possess and use inhalers, as well as glucose tablets, according to the 

provisions of rule 5600.2. 

a. First Offense.  Short-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular 

activities during time of suspension. 

b. Second Offense.   

(1) Minimum Sanction.  Long-term suspension.  Suspension from 

extracurricular activities during time of suspension. 

(2) Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular 

activities during time of expulsion. 

2. Possession of Medications (Middle School Level).  Possession of prescribed or non-

prescribed medications, or possession of prescribed medications on school grounds or 

during transportation to and from school, is prohibited.  Middle school students may 

transport non-prescribed medications to and from school but must turn it into the nurse 

52



upon arrival at school.  Middle school students may possess and use inhalers, as well as 

glucose tablets, according to the provisions of rule 5600.2. 

a. First Offense.  Short-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular 

activities during time of suspension. 

(1) Minimum Sanction.  Short-term suspension.  Suspension from 

extracurricular activities during time of suspension. 

(2) Maximum Sanction.  Long-term suspension.  Suspension from 

extracurricular activities during time of suspension. 

b. Second Offense.   

(1) Minimum Sanction.  Long-term suspension.  Suspension from 

extracurricular activities during time of suspension. 

(2) Maximum Minimum Sanction.  Mandatory Expulsion.  Suspension 

from extracurricular activities during time of expulsion. 

3. Possession of Medications (High School Level).  Possession of prescribed medications is 

prohibited.  High school students may possess non-prescribed medications, but they may 

not possess prescribed medications except in transport to and from school.  Prescribed 

medications must be turned into the nurse upon arrival at school.  High school students 

may possess and use glucose tablets and inhalers according to the provisions of rule 

5600.2. 

a. First Offense.  Long-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular 

activities during time of suspension. 

(1) Minimum Sanction.  Short-term suspension.  Suspension from 

extracurricular activities during time of suspension. 

(2) Maximum Sanction.  Long-term suspension.  Suspension from 

extracurricular activities during time of suspension. 

b. Second Offense.   

(1) Minimum Sanction.  Mandatory Expulsion.  Suspension from 

extracurricular activities during time of expulsion. 

D. Distribution of Prescribed Medications.  Distribution or attempted distribution to any other person, 

of any prescribed medication. 

1. First Offense.   Mandatory expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities during 

time of expulsion.   

2. Mandatory Action.  Legal authorities shall be contacted.  Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-267(6) 

and 293. 

E. Distribution of Non-Prescribed Medications.  Distribution or attempted distribution to any other 

person, of any non-prescribed medication. 

1. First Offense.  Short-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular activities during 

time of suspension. 

2. Second Offense.   

a. Minimum Sanction.  Long-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular 

activities during time of suspension. 

b. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities 

during time of expulsion. 

53



F. Receiving Non-Prescribed Medications.  Receiving non-prescription medications by high school 

students that are distributed by another student at school. 

1. Maximum Sanction.  Short-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular activities 

during time of suspension.   

G. Under the Influence of Alcohol or Other Drugs.  Being intoxicated or under the influence of any 

illegal narcotic drug, controlled substance, prescribed medication by a student for whom the 

prescribed medication was not prescribed, mood-altering or behavior-affecting substance, or 

alcohol. 

1. Sanctions on School Grounds. 

a. First Offense.  Suspension for nineteen (19) school days.  Suspension from 

extracurricular activities while not in school due to the suspension.  Parents, at 

their own expense, may choose to participate in a District-approved suspension 

reduction program.  Successful completion of this program may reduce the 

suspension and curtailment of extracurricular activities by a maximum of nine 

(9) school days (results in a total of ten (10) days out of school). 

b. Second Offense. Mandatory expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular 

activities during time of expulsion.  Prior violations of subsection III (G) on or 

off school grounds will be included as previous offenses. 

c. Mandatory Action.  Legal authorities shall be contacted. Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-

267(6) and 293. 

2. Sanctions off School Grounds.   

a. Citation during academic school year or the student admits that he or she has 

violated subsection III(G).  Curtailment of extracurricular activities for nineteen 

(19) school days.  

(1) First Offense.  Parents, at their own expense, may choose to participate 

in a District-approved suspension reduction program.  Successful 

completion of this program may reduce the curtailment of 

extracurricular activities by a maximum of nine (9) school days 

(results in a total of ten (10) school days curtailment of extracurricular 

activities).  Previous offenses of subsection III(G) on or off school 

grounds during the current academic school year would not allow 

participation in this option.  

(2) Second Offense.  Suspension from extracurricular activities for one (1) 

year.   

H. Exposure to Bodily Fluids.  Intentionally spitting, throwing, wiping, or otherwise dispersing 

bodily fluids on or to another student or staff member for the purpose of infecting, inciting, 

demeaning, or intimidating that person. 

1. Minimum Sanction.  Short-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular activities 

during time of suspension. 

2. Maximum Sanction.  Long-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular activities 

during time of suspension. 

I. Tobacco.  Possession or use of tobacco or tobacco products. 

1. Maximum Sanction.  Long-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular activities 

during time of suspension. 

J. Possession of Fireworks. 

54



1. Maximum Sanction.  Long-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular activities 

during time of suspension. 

K. Use of Fireworks.  Use or lighting of firecrackers or fireworks of any description. 

1. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities during time 

of expulsion.  

IV. Violations against Public Decency and Good Morals. 

A. Public Indecency.  Behavior resulting in public indecency (see definition). This subsection shall 

apply only to students above grade five (5).  Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-267(7). 

1. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities during time 

of expulsion. 

B. Profanity and Obscenity.  Written or oral language that is reasonably offensive or repulsive to the 

person hearing the same and which is disruptive of the educational process. 

1. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities during time 

of expulsion. 

C. Disparaging Language/Symbolism.  Disparaging or demeaning language or symbolic actions of 

any kind including, but not limited to gestures or language that is intended to disparage, demean, 

or subject another student or staff member to ridicule. 

1. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities during time 

of expulsion.  

D. Secret Organizations/Gangs. Participation or membership in any secret fraternity, sorority, club, 

association, or organization is prohibited. The wearing of any ring, pin, or insignia of such a secret 

organization is also prohibited. Organizations or gangs, which initiate, advocate, or promote 

violence, drug or alcohol use, sex, criminal activity, or activities which disrupt the school 

environment or threaten the safety or well being of persons or geographic territory, unique 

appearance, or language, are a substantial disruption to and material interference with the 

educational environment, and are prohibited. The use of hand signals, graffiti, or the presence of 

any apparel, jewelry, accessory, or manner of grooming which, by virtue of its color, arrangement, 

trademark, symbol, or other attributes indicates or implies membership in or affiliation with such a 

group, constitutes a substantial disruption to and material interference with the educational 

environment, and are prohibited. 

1. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities during time 

of expulsion.  

V. Violations against Property. 

A. Damage to Property.  Willfully causing or attempting to cause substantial damage or participating 

in behavior that results in negligent damage to property, or repeated damage to property.  This 

shall include school property lent to the student which the student damages.  As to any such 

damaged property, the student’s parent(s) or guardian(s) shall be liable for the damage to the 

school property. Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-267(2). 

1. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities during time 

of expulsion.  

2. Mandatory Action.  Legal authorities shall be contacted when the value of the property is 

five-hundred dollars ($500.00) or more.  Neb. Rev. Stat. §28-519; Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-

267(2) and 293. 

B. Theft/Larceny.  Stealing or attempting to steal property, or repeated theft of property.  This will 

include school property lent to a student that is not returned upon demand by an authorized staff 

member and for which there is no reasonable justification for the failure to return the property. 

55



Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-267(2). 

1. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities during time 

of expulsion. 

2. Mandatory Action.  Legal authorities shall be contacted when the value of the property 

involved is two hundred dollars ($200.00) or more. Neb. Rev. Stat. §§28-511 and 518; 

Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-267(2) and 293. 

3. Sanctions off School Grounds.  Committing burglary or theft which constitutes a felony 

provided the student has received a citation by a law enforcement officer which involves 

the offense subject to this subsection or the student admits that he or she has violated 

subsection V(B).  Suspension from extracurricular activities for one (1) year.  

C. Arson or False Fire Alarm.  Intentionally starting a fire. Use of any fire causing agents to start or 

attempt to start a fire.  Purposely or knowingly causing a false fire alarm.  Neb. Rev. Stat. §§28-

502 to 504 and 907; Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-267(10). 

1. Minimum Sanction.  Short-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular activities 

during time of suspension.  There is no mandated minimum sanction below grade six (6). 

2. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities during time 

of expulsion. 

3. Mandatory Action.  Legal authorities shall be contacted if it is believed the arson was 

criminal.  Neb. Rev. Stat. §§28-502 to 504 and 907; Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-267(10) and 

293. 

D. False Alarm or Report.  Purposely making a false alarm or false report, or purposely furnishing 

false information or making a false communication or statement, whether verbal, written or 

electronic, concerning the existence of any bomb, explosive device or weapon, dangerous 

chemical substance, or biochemical or terroristic device, or concerning another’s intent or attempt 

to be made to kill, injure, or intimidate any individual or to use any bomb, explosive device, or 

weapon, dangerous chemical substance, or biochemical or terroristic device, or concerning the 

need for medical, police, or emergency services or procedures.  Neb. Rev. Stat. §§28-907 and 

1221; Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-267(10). 

1. Minimum Sanction.  Short-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular activities 

during time of suspension. 

2. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities during time 

of expulsion.  

3. Mandatory Action.  Legal authorities shall be contacted.  Neb. Rev. Stat. §§28-907 and 

1221; Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-267(10) and 293. 

E. Computers.  Direct or indirect use of District computers, computer networks, or computer systems, 

which involves offensive, personal, commercial, and/or religious messages, or any unauthorized 

access or use of a District computer, computer network, or computer system which violates 

District policy or state or federal law.  Neb. Rev. Stat. §§28-1341 to 1348; Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-

267(10). 

1. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities during time 

of expulsion. 

2. Mandatory Action.  Legal authorities shall be contacted if the action constitutes a felony.  

Neb. Rev. Stat. §§28-1341 to 1348; Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-267(10) and 293. 

VI. Violations against School Administration. 

A. Truancy.  Unauthorized absence from school. Neb. Rev. Stat. §§79-201 and 209.  

56



1. Maximum Sanction.  Short-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular activities 

during time of suspension.  

B. Gambling.  Playing any game of chance for money or other stakes. Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-267(10 ). 

1. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities during time 

of expulsion. 

C. Dishonesty.  Dishonesty that interferes with the educational process.  

1. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities during time 

of expulsion. 

 

D. Cheating or Plagiarism.  Cheating on examinations including but not limited to ELO 

examinations.  Plagiarism on projects including but not limited to reports, research papers, and 

portfolios. 

1. Maximum Sanction.  Long-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular activities 

during time of suspension. 

E. Insubordination.  Disrespect for, defying authority of, or refusing to obey requests or directions of 

teachers, school officials or school employees. 

1. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities during time 

of expulsion. 

F. Disruptive Behavior.  Behavior or possession of any item that materially interferes with or 

substantially disrupts class work, school activities, or the educational process. 

1. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities during time 

of expulsion. 

G. Nuisance Items.  Any item in a student’s possession that is sufficiently annoying, offensive, 

unpleasant, or obnoxious that it substantially interferes with or materially interrupts the 

educational process.  These items may include, but are not limited to, radios, camera cell phones, 

beepers, walkie-talkies, tape and CD players, IPods, MP3 players, cameras, devices that emit laser 

light beams, and other electronic devices. 

1. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities during time 

of expulsion. 

H. Unlawful Activity.  Engaging in any unlawful activity not specifically covered herein, which 

constitutes a danger to other students or school personnel, or interferes with school purposes or the 

educational process. Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-267(10). 

1. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities during time 

of expulsion. 

I. False Complaints.  False accusations or complaints against another student or staff member. 

1. Maximum Sanction.  Long-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular activities 

during time of suspension. 

J. Noncompliance with Code Yellow or Code Red.  Intentionally leaving an assigned area already in 

containment during a Code Yellow or Code Red alert unless specifically given permission to do so 

by the supervisor of the assigned area. 

1. Minimum Sanction.  Long-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular activities 

during time of suspension. 

2. Maximum Sanction.  Expulsion.  Suspension from extracurricular activities during time 

57



of expulsion. 

K. Student Identification.  Failure of a high school student to present the school approved student 

identification card upon the request of a District staff member while on school grounds, in a 

vehicle owned, leased, or contracted by a school being used for a school purpose or in a vehicle 

being driven for a school purpose by a school employee or by his or her designee, or at a school-

sponsored activity or athletic event. 

1. Maximum Sanction.  Short-term suspension.  Suspension from extracurricular activities 

during time of suspension. 

VII. Repeated Offenses or Series of Prohibited Conduct. 

A. Two (2) or more violations of prohibited conduct or violation of two (2) or more of the acts 

prohibited herein within the academic school year which constitute a substantial interference with 

school purposes. Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-267(11). 

1. Sanction.  Unless otherwise provided herein, prohibited conduct otherwise subject to 

short-term suspension shall be subject to long-term suspension; conduct otherwise subject 

to long-term suspension shall be subject to expulsion; prohibited conduct initially subject 

to expulsion shall be again subject to expulsion. 

VIII. Curtailment of Extracurricular Activities. 

A. General Statement.  When reasonably necessary to aid the student, further school purposes, or 

prevent interference with the educational process, the District shall curtail a student’s participation 

in District extracurricular activities.  Students shall not be permitted to be on District property or 

participate in or attend District-sponsored extracurricular activities during the time period that the 

student is excluded from school for disciplinary reasons.  In addition, students may be curtailed 

from extracurricular activities for misconduct taking place off school grounds and not at a school 

function, activity, or event during the academic school year pursuant to the provisions of this 

section and Rule 5400.4.  

B. Period of Ineligibility for Conduct on School Grounds. 

1. Period of Ineligibility.  During any time period that a student is excluded from school due 

to short-term suspension, long-term suspension, expulsion, or emergency exclusion for 

conduct occurring on school grounds, in a vehicle owned, leased, or contracted by a 

school being used for a school purpose or in a vehicle being driven for a school purpose 

by a school employee or by his or her designee, or at a school-sponsored activity or 

athletic event, or any other place where the governing law permits the District to 

discipline students for prohibited conduct, the student so excluded shall also be ineligible 

for participation in extracurricular activities for the entire period of exclusion, and will 

also be prohibited from being on District property or attending any District-sponsored 

extracurricular events during the period of exclusion from school.  

2. Effective Following Semester if Necessary.  The ineligibility period shall remain in effect 

during the following semester (including the following school year) if there are 

insufficient school days in the semester to complete the ineligibility period.  

C. Period of Ineligibility for Conduct off School Grounds.  The following prohibited conduct 

occurring off school grounds not at a school function, activity, or event during the academic 

school year shall subject the student to the following periods of ineligibility for extracurricular 

activities: 

1. Guns, etc.  Knowingly possessing, handling, transmitting, using, intimidating with, or 

threatening with any object or material that is ordinarily and/or generally considered a 

firearm, explosive, destructive device, or weapon, including, but not limited to, guns, 

firearms, pipe bombs, stun guns, paint ball guns, air soft guns, B.B. guns and pellet guns, 

provided the student has received a citation by a law enforcement officer which involves 

the offense subject to this subsection or the student admits that he or she has violated this 

subsection. 

58



a. Suspension from extracurricular activities for one (1) year.   

2. Other Weapons.  Using or threatening with a knife, throwing star, brass knuckles, 

chemical substances (including, but not limited to, mace, pepper guns, and bleach), and 

any other object that could be used to injure a person, provided the student has received a 

citation by a law enforcement officer which involves the offense subject to this 

subsection or the student admits that he or she has violated this subsection. 

a. Sanction.  Ineligibility period of one (1) year. 

3. Sexual Contact.  The intentional touching of another person’s sexual or intimate parts or 

the intentional touching of another person’s clothing covering the immediate area of the 

other person’s sexual or intimate parts, without the consent of the other person.  Sexual 

contact also includes the non-consensual touching by the other person of the actor’s 

sexual or intimate parts or the clothing covering the immediate area of the actor’s sexual 

or intimate parts when such touching is intentionally caused by the actor provided the 

student has received a citation by a law enforcement officer which involves the offense 

subject to this subsection or the student admits that he or she has violated this subsection. 

a. Sanction.  Ineligibility period of one (1) year. 

4. Possession of Alcohol or other Drugs.  The use or possession of an illegal narcotic drug, 

drug paraphernalia, look-a-like substance, controlled substance, mood-altering or 

behavior-affecting substance, or alcoholic beverage, provided the student has received a 

citation by a law enforcement officer which involves the offense subject to this 

subsection or the student admits that he or she has violated this subsection. 

a. First Offense.  Ineligibility period of nineteen (19) school days.  Parents, at their 

own expense, may choose to participate in a District-approved suspension 

reduction program.  Successful completion of this program may reduce the 

curtailment of extracurricular activities a maximum of nine (9) school days 

(results in a total of ten (10) school days curtailment of extracurricular 

activities). 

b. Second Offense.  Suspension from extracurricular activities for one (1) year.  

Prior violations of subsection III(A) on or off school grounds will be included as 

previous offenses. 

5. Distribution of Alcohol or other Drugs.  The dispensing, sale, or the intent to sell or 

dispense an illegal narcotic drug, look-a-like substance, controlled substance, mood-

altering or behavior-affecting substance, or alcoholic beverage, provided the student has 

received a citation by a law enforcement officer which involves the offense subject to this 

subsection or the student admits that he or she has violated this subsection.   

a. Sanction.  Ineligibility period of one (1) year. 

6. Under the Influence of Alcohol or other Drugs.  Being intoxicated or under the influence 

of any illegal narcotic drug, controlled substance, prescribed medication by a student for 

whom the prescribed medication was not prescribed, mood-altering or behavior-affecting 

substance, or alcohol, provided the student has received a citation by a law enforcement 

officer which involves the offense subject to this subsection or the student admits that he 

or she has violated this subsection. 

a. First Offense.  Ineligibility period of nineteen (19) school days.  Parents, at their 

own expense, may choose to participate in a District-approved suspension 

reduction program.  Successful completion of this program may reduce the 

curtailment of extracurricular activities a maximum of nine (9) school days 

(results in a total of ten (10) school days curtailment of extracurricular 

activities). 

b. Second Offense. Suspension from extracurricular activities for one (1) year.  

Prior violations of subsection III(G) on or off school grounds will be included as 

59



previous offenses. 

7. Physical Injury to District Employees, Volunteers, and Students.  Causing or attempting 

to cause personal injury to any District employee, school volunteer, or to any student, 

provided the student has received a citation by a law enforcement officer which involves 

the offense subject to this subsection or the student admits that he or she has violated this 

subsection.  

a. Sanction.  Ineligibility period of remainder of the semester or nineteen (19) 

school days, whichever is more.  

b. Second Offense.  Suspension from extracurricular activities for one (1) year.  

Prior violations of subsection II(B) on or off school grounds will be included as 

previous offenses. 

8. Sexual Assault or Attempted Sexual Assault.  Sexually assaulting or attempting to 

sexually assault any person, provided the student has received a citation by a law 

enforcement officer which involves the offense subject to this subsection, the student 

admits that he or she has violated this subsection, or a complaint has been filed by a 

prosecutor in a court of competent jurisdiction alleging that the student has sexually 

assaulted or attempted to sexually assault any person.   

a. Sanction.  Ineligibility period of one (1) year. 

9. Theft/Larceny.  Committing a burglary or theft that constitutes a felony, provided the 

student has received a citation by a law enforcement officer which involves the offense 

subject to this subsection or the student admits that he or she has violated this subsection.  

a. Sanction.  Ineligibility period of one (1) year. 

10. Repeated Offenses.  Two (2) or more offenses of one (1) of the above prohibited actions.  

Prior offenses of the above prohibited actions will be included as previous offenses. 

a. Sanction:  Ineligibility period of one (1) year. 

D. District Events During Ineligibility Period.  Students who are ineligible for participation in 

extracurricular activities will also be prohibited from attending any District-sponsored 

extracurricular events during the ineligibility period. 

E. Effective Following Semester if Necessary.  The ineligibility period shall remain in effect during 

the following semester (including the following school year) if there are insufficient school days 

in the semester to complete the ineligibility period. 

F. Commutation.  Penalties assigned under this Section may be reduced by the Superintendent or 

Superintendent’s designee upon the successful completion of counseling, community service, or 

other alternatives to curtailment set by the District.  The District shall have the sole discretion in 

determining whether the student is eligible for commutation, and what form the counseling, 

community service, or other alternatives to curtailment must be successfully completed before 

commutation may take place.  Any costs associated with counseling, community service, or other 

alternatives to curtailment shall be borne by the student or the student’s parent(s) or guardian(s). 

G. Effective Date.  The effective date of the curtailment of extracurricular activities shall be the date 

that the principal or principal’s designee provides the student with the oral or written notice of the 

charges except the principal shall not issue a letter of curtailment until there is a student 

admission, court decision or uncontested citation.  

IX. DEFINITIONS. 

A. “Alcoholic beverage” shall mean any substance subject to the jurisdiction of the Nebraska Liquor 

Commission. 

B. “Citation” shall mean a summons to appear in court issued by a law enforcement officer. 

60



C. “Controlled substance” shall mean opiates, opium derivatives, depressants, stimulants, and the 

substances and derivatives as defined by Neb. Rev. Stat. §28-401(4) including, but not limited to, 

“uppers”, “downers”, barbiturates, amphetamines, LSD, heroin, hashish, hallucinogenic or 

cocaine, and substances, such as glue, to the extent any such substance is used for the purpose of 

mood or behavior alteration by a student, and any other substance which alters the mood or 

behavior and which is not taken for medical purposes (e.g., steroids).  

D. “Curtailment of extracurricular activities” shall mean that the student is ineligible for participation 

in or attending any extracurricular activities.  During any time that a student is excluded from 

school for conduct occurring while within school jurisdiction, the student is ineligible for 

participation in or attending any extracurricular activities.  

E. “Destructive device” shall mean (1) any explosive, incendiary or poison gas-bomb, grenade, 

rocket having a propellant charge of more than four (4) ounces, missile having an explosive or 

incendiary charge of more than one-quarter ounce, mine, or device similar to any of the devices 

described in the proceeding clauses; (2) any type of weapon (other than a shotgun shell which is 

generally recognized as particularly suitable for sporting purposes) by whatever name known 

which will, or which may be readily converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive 

or other propellant, and which has any barrel with a bore of more than one-half inch in diameter; 

and (3) any combination of parts either designed or intended for use in converting any device into 

any destructive device or from which a destructive device may be readily assembled.  

F. “Exclusion” shall mean that time period a student is excluded from school during short-term 

suspension, long-term suspension, emergency exclusion, or expulsion.  It may also mean that 

period that the student is mandatorily reassigned. 

G. “Expulsion” shall mean exclusion from all schools in the District (except the location designated 

for alternative education). 

H. “Extracurricular activities” shall mean all athletic teams, activities, groups, clubs, homecomings, 

proms, dances, graduation ceremonies, and all other organizations or events sponsored by or 

associated with the District which are not part of the District curriculum.  

I. “Firearms” shall mean (1) any weapon (including a starter gun) which will or is designed to or 

may readily be converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive; (2) the frame or 

receiver of any such weapon; (3) any firearm muffler or firearm silencer; or (4) any destructive 

device.  Such term does not include an antique firearm.  

J. “Illegal narcotic drug” shall mean the illegal substances as defined by Neb. Rev. Stat. §28-

401(15). 

K. “Ineligibility period” shall mean that period of time that a district student is prohibited from 

participating in and/or attending any district extracurricular activities. 

L. “Injury” shall mean damage to a person that results in a specific wound or wounds that requires 

first aid treatment or a physician’s care. 

M. “Long-term suspension” shall mean exclusion from all schools in the District for more than five 

(5) school days but less than twenty (20) school days. 

N. “Look-a-like substance” (also known as imitation controlled substance) shall mean any substance 

which is not a controlled substance, but which by its appearance (including, but not limited to, 

color, shape, size, markings, or packaging) or by representations made, induce or are intended to 

induce, persons to believe that the substance is a controlled substance.  “Look-a-like substance” 

shall include any beverage containing alcohol or a beverage that is represented to contain alcohol.   

O. “Medication” shall be broadly defined and shall mean all prescribed medications, over the counter 

and other non-prescribed medications, and all chemical substances, compounds, homeopathic 

substances, herbs, vitamins, and/or devices, which purport to aid in a person’s health or well-being 

or are intended for use in the diagnoses, cure, mitigation, treatment, or prevention of diseases, or 

are intended to affect the structure or any function of the body; and any device, instrument, 

apparatus, implement, machine, contrivance, implant, or other similar or related article, including 

61



any component part or accessory, which is prescribed by a physician, physician assistant, or 

advanced practice registered nurse, and dispensed by a pharmacist or other person authorized by 

law.   

P. “Non-prescribed medication” shall mean all medications which are available without a 

prescription or order from a person who is licensed under the laws of Nebraska to prescribe 

medications. 

Q. “On school grounds” shall mean on District property, in a vehicle owned, leased, or contracted by 

the District being used for a school purpose or in a vehicle being driven for a school purpose by a 

school employee or his or her designee, or at a school-sponsored activity or athletic event. 

R. “One year” shall mean the three hundred sixty-five (365) days that follow the acts at issue. 

S. “Prescribed medication” shall mean all medications which are available only with a prescription 

or order from a person who is licensed under the laws of Nebraska to prescribe medications. 

T. “Public indecency” shall mean performing, procuring, or assisting any other person to perform, in 

a public place and where the conduct may reasonably be expected to be publicly viewed:  (1) An 

act of sexual penetration; (2) An exposure of the genitals, female breasts or buttocks of the body 

done with intent to affront or alarm any person; or (3) A lewd fondling or caressing of the body of 

another person of the same or opposite sex. 

U. “School day” shall mean any day that school is in session and students are attending academic 

courses.  It does not include practices for extracurricular activities held during the summer, or 

weekends and vacations that occur during the academic school year. 

V. “School jurisdiction” shall mean on District property, in a vehicle owned, leased, or contracted by 

the District being used for a school purpose or in a vehicle being driven for a school purpose by a 

school employee or his or her designee, or at a school-sponsored activity or athletic event, or any 

other place where the governing law permits the District to discipline students for prohibited 

conduct. 

W. “Sexual assault” shall mean sexual assault in the first degree as defined in Neb. Rev. Stat. §§28-

319, sexual assault in the second degree as defined in Neb. Rev. Stat. §28-320, sexual assault of a 

child in the second or third degree as defined in Neb. Rev. Stat. §28-320.01, or sexual assault of a 

child in the first degree as defined in Neb Rev. Stat. §28-319.01, as such statutes now provide or 

may hereafter be amended. 

X. “Sexual or intimate parts” shall mean the genital area, groin, inner thighs, buttocks or breasts.  

Y. “Short-term suspension” shall mean exclusion from all schools in the District not to exceed five 

(5) school days. 

Z. “Under the influence” shall mean the manifestation of physical and physiological symptoms or 

reactions caused by the use of any illegal narcotic drug, controlled substance, mood-altering or 

behavior-affecting substance, prescribed medication by a student for whom the prescribed 

medication was not prescribed, or alcohol. 

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 28-201 and 209 

  Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 28-319, 319.01, 320 and 320.01 

  Neb. Rev. Stat. § 28-401 

Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 28-502 and 504 

Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 28-511, 518 and 519 

Neb. Rev. Stat. § 28-907 

Neb. Rev. Stat. § 28-1202 et seq. 

Neb. Rev. Stat. § 28-1341 

Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-267 

Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-293 

 

 

Related Rules: 5300.3, 5400.1, 5400.2, 5400.3, 5400.4, 5400.5, 5410.1, 5420.1, 5470.1, 5480.1, 5490.1, 5600.2 

62

http://mps.schoolfusion.us/modules/groups/homepagefiles/cms/750516/File/Board%20Policies/Pupil%20Services/5300.3.pdf
http://mps.schoolfusion.us/modules/groups/homepagefiles/cms/750516/File/Board%20Policies/Pupil%20Services/5400.1.pdf
http://mps.schoolfusion.us/modules/groups/homepagefiles/cms/750516/File/Board%20Policies/Pupil%20Services/5400.2%20.pdf
http://mps.schoolfusion.us/modules/groups/homepagefiles/cms/750516/File/Board%20Policies/Pupil%20Services/5400.3.pdf
http://mps.schoolfusion.us/modules/groups/homepagefiles/cms/750516/File/Board%20Policies/Pupil%20Services/5400.4.pdf
http://mps.schoolfusion.us/modules/groups/homepagefiles/cms/750516/File/Board%20Policies/Pupil%20Services/5400.5.pdf
http://mps.schoolfusion.us/modules/groups/homepagefiles/cms/750516/File/Board%20Policies/Pupil%20Services/5410.1.pdf
http://mps.schoolfusion.us/modules/groups/homepagefiles/cms/750516/File/Board%20Policies/Pupil%20Services/5420_1.pdf
http://mps.schoolfusion.us/modules/groups/homepagefiles/cms/750516/File/Board%20Policies/Pupil%20Services/5470_1.pdf
http://mps.schoolfusion.us/modules/groups/homepagefiles/cms/750516/File/Board%20Policies/Pupil%20Services/5480_1.pdf
http://mps.schoolfusion.us/modules/groups/homepagefiles/cms/750516/File/Board%20Policies/Pupil%20Services/5490_1.pdf
http://mps.schoolfusion.us/modules/groups/homepagefiles/cms/750516/File/Board%20Policies/Pupil%20Services/5600_2.pdf


 

Rule Approved:  May 7, 2001   

Revised:  April 15, 2002; May 5, 2003; March 15, 2004; June 5, 2006  

July 9, 2007; June 2, 2008; February 2, 2009; May 18, 2009; May 17, 2010 

April 4, 2011 

 
  

 Millard Public Schools  

 Omaha, NE 

  

63



AGENDA ITEM: Administrator Recommended for Hire 
 
 
MEETING DATE: April 11, 2011 
 
 
DEPARTMENT: Human Resources 
 
 
TITLE & DESCRIPTION: Assistant Principal at Millard North High School 
 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  The position was advertised on Millard’s job posting website and in the Omaha 

World Herald.  Five internal and eighteen external applications were received. The 
applications were reviewed by Dr. Jim Sutfin, Dr. Keith Lutz, Dr. Curtis Case, and 
Brian Begley. Two internal and five external candidates were interviewed for the 
position. The interview team included Dr. Jim Sutfin, Dr. Keith Lutz, Angelo 
Passarelli, Dr. Kim Saum-Mills, Kevin Chick, Brian Begley, Dr. Curtis Case, Dr. 
Nancy Johnston, Jeanine Beaudin, Shelley Boyd, Chad Zimmerman, Susan Marlatt, 
Mary Bayne, Tracy Cox, Jill Fiala, Pam Clark, Anna Bute, Lynn Hill, Brad Millard, 
Darlene Rohlfsen, Janelle McKain, Ted Weir, Kevin Knudson, Brett Begley and 
Saleasha McClurge. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  The superintendent’s recommendation is approval of Matt Blomenkamp for 

Assistant Principal of Millard North High School. Matt is currently an administrator 
for Bellevue Public Schools (2006-present). Previously, Mr. Blomenkamp was a 
Physical Education Teacher at Bennington Public Schools (2002-2006); Special 
Education  Director at ESU #1 (2001-2002); and a Physical Education/Health 
Teacher at McCool Junction Public Schools (1999-2001). 

 
EDUCATION:  BA of Arts – Midland Lutheran College, Fremont, NE (1999)  
  MA – Educational Administration, Wayne State College, Wayne, NE  
  (Secondary-2002; Elementary-2005) 
  Education Specialist – Wayne State College, Wayne, NE (2009) 
     
 
 
OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approval 
 
 
PERSON RECOMMENDING: Jim Sutfin, Ed.D. 
 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: 

64



AGENDA ITEM:  Administrator Recommended for Hire 
 
 
MEETING DATE:  April 11, 2011 
 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Human Resources 
 
 
TITLE & DESCRIPTION:  Assistant Principal at Millard South High School 
 
 
ACTION DESIRED:  Approval 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  The position was advertised on Millard’s job posting website and in the Omaha 

World Herald.  Five internal and eighteen external applications were received. The 
applications were reviewed by Dr. Jim Sutfin, Dr. Keith Lutz, Dr. Curtis Case, and 
Brian Begley. Two internal and five external candidates were interviewed for the 
position. The interview team included Dr. Jim Sutfin, Dr. Keith Lutz, Angelo 
Passarelli, Dr. Kim Saum-Mills, Kevin Chick, Brian Begley, Dr. Curtis Case, Dr. 
Nancy Johnston, Jeanine Beaudin, Shelley Boyd, Chad Zimmerman, Susan Marlatt, 
Mary Bayne, Tracy Cox, Jill Fiala, Pam Clark, Anna Bute, Lynn Hill, Brad Millard, 
Darlene Rohlfsen, Janelle McKain, Ted Weir, Kevin Knudson, Brett Begley and 
Saleasha McClurge. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The superintendent’s recommendation is approval of Michelle M. Klug for 

Assistant Principal of Millard South High School. Michelle is currently the Interim 
Assistant Principal at Millard South High School (2011-present). Previously, Ms. 
Klug was a Special Education Department Head at Millard South High School 
(2004-2011); and Special Education Teacher at Millard South High School (2001-
2004). 

 
EDUCATION:  BA of Arts in Psychology – University of Nebraska, Lincoln (2000) 
  MA of Education in Special Education – University of Nebraska, Lincoln (2001) 
  MA of Education in Administration – Doane College, Lincoln, Nebraska (2008) 
   
 
 
OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approval 
 
 
PERSON RECOMMENDING:  Jim Sutfin, Ed.D. 
 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: 

65



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Meeting Date: April 4, 2011 

Department Human Resources 

Action Desired: Approval 

Background: Personnel item: (1) Hires; (2) Amendments; (3) Leave of Absence; (4) 
Resignations; (5) Rescission of Voluntary Separation and Resignation 

 
Options/Alternatives  
Considered: N/A 
 
Recommendations: Approval 

Strategic Plan 

Reference: N/A 

Implications of  
Adoption/Rejection: N/A 
 
Timeline: N/A 

Responsible 
Persons: Jim Sutfin, Ed.D. 
 

 

 

 

Superintendent’s Signature: __________________________________________ 

66

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



April 4, 2011 
 
 

AMENDMENT TO CONTINUING CONTRACTS 
 
 

Recommend:  Amendment to the following contracts: 

1. Dian H. Carlson – Family Consumer Science teacher at Millard West High School – 
Amend contract to 100% at Millard West High School for the 2011-2012 school year. 
(She is currently a 50% teacher.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

67



April 4, 2011 

LEAVE OF ABSENCE 

Recommend: The following Leave of Absence be accepted: 

1. Katie Tessin – Grade 2 teacher at Cottonwood Elementary. She is requesting a 
2nd year Leave of Absence for the 2011-2012 school year for family reasons. 

 

68



April 4, 2011 
 

 
 

RESIGNATIONS 
 
 
Recommend:  The following resignation be accepted: 
 

1. Traci L. Stanek – Grade 5 teacher at Harvey Oaks Elementary School.  Resigning at the 
end of the 2010-2011 school year. The family is relocating out of state. 

2. Susan M. Morrison – Special Education Preschool Teacher at Hitchcock Elementary 
School. Resigning, effective immediately, for personal reasons. 

3. Melissa K. Byington – Assistant Principal at Andersen Middle School. Resigning at the 
end of the 2010-2011 school year. The family is relocating out of state. 

 

69



April 4, 2011 
 
 
 

RESCISSION OF VOLUNTARY SEPARATION AND RESIGNATION  
 
 

Recommend:  the following resignation be rescinded: 
 
1. Amy J. Friedman’s voluntary separation was approved at the January 10, 2011 Board of 

Education meeting.  She would like to rescind her voluntary separation application and 
resignation to continue her present position as Communications Director for Millard 
Public Schools. 

 

70



April 4, 2011 
 

 
TEACHERS RECOMMENDED FOR HIRE 

 
 
Recommend: the following teachers be hired for the 2011/2012 school year: 
 

1. Tricia J. Rohde – MA – University of Nebraska, Omaha.  Alternate Curriculum 
Program Teacher at Millard North High School for the 2011-2012 school year. 
Previous Experience: OPS (2000-present)    
 
 

71



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Budget Projections Report 
 
MEETING DATE: April 4, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Budget Projections Report:  A report of the budget projects after the introduction 

of LB235 and the superintendent’s “initial thoughts” discussed at the last 
committee meeting. 

 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval              Discussion             Information Only     x                                 .       
 
BACKGROUND: At the last committee meeting, the superintendent presented some “initial 

thoughts” with regard to budget reductions for 2011-12.  Since that meeting, 
LB235 has come out of the Legislature’s Education Committee.  LB235 (in its 
current form) has state aid projected at $822 million statewide in 2011-12 and 
$880 million in 2012-13.  Finally, we have received some initial (not official) 
information indicating that property values in the learning community may actually 
increase a bit. 

 
 In light of the above, the attached spreadsheet reflects new budget projection for 

2011-12 based upon: 
 

(a) the reductions noted in the superintendent’s “initial thoughts” 
(b) the new state aid amounts in LB235 
(c) an increase of 1% in property values 

  
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: n/a 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: n/a 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

72

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



FYE11 FYE12 FYE13 FYE14 FYE15 FYE16 FYE17
PROPERTY VALUES
  Assessed Valuations 9,079,309,589      9,079,309,589      9,079,309,589      9,079,309,589      9,079,309,589      9,079,309,589      9,079,309,589     

TAX LEVIES
  Tax Levy ‐ Bonds 0.16 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.14
  Tax Levy ‐ LC GF Common Levy 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95

  Tax Levy ‐ LC SBF Common Levy (Page 2) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Tax Levy ‐ MPS Option to SBF (Page 2) 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01

  Tax Levy ‐ MPS Option to GF 0.09 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.11

  Total 1.21 1.21 1.21 1.21 1.21 1.21 1.21

  

EXPENSES
  Bond Principal & Interest (Exclude) 13,990,000     13,297,780     13,225,105     13,200,418     13,170,068     13,072,193     12,359,793    
  Projects in General Fund (Page 2) 6,600,000        Notes 6,600,000        6,600,000        6,600,000        6,600,000        6,600,000        6,600,000       

  Salaries & Benefits 153,098,066   Notes 150,306,404   1.015 152,561,000   1.020 155,612,220   1.020 158,724,464   1.020 161,898,954   1.020 165,136,933  

  Other 54,262,544     Notes 54,405,169     1.010 54,949,221     1.010 55,498,713     1.010 56,053,700     1.010 56,614,237     1.010 57,180,380    

  Total (Bonds Excluded) 213,960,610   211,311,573   214,110,221   217,710,933   221,378,165   225,113,191   228,917,313  

REVENUES
  Tax Receipts ‐ Bonds (Exclude) 13,990,000     13,297,780     13,225,105     13,200,418     13,170,068     13,072,193     12,359,793    
  State Aid (via LC Formula) 82,679,937     0.927 76,644,302     0.999 76,567,657     1.000 76,567,657     1.010 77,333,334     1.020 78,880,001     1.030 81,246,401    

  Tax Receipts ‐ LC GF Common Levy 81,754,547     1.010 82,572,092     1.010 83,397,813     1.000 83,397,813     1.010 84,231,792     1.020 85,916,427     1.030 88,493,920    

  Tax Receipts ‐ LC SBF Common Levy ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    ‐                   

  Tax Receipts ‐ MPS Option 8,481,291        9,173,511        9,246,186        9,270,873        9,301,223        9,399,098        10,111,498    

  Grant/Other 43,710,940     41,350,300     41,350,300     41,350,300     41,350,300     41,350,300     41,350,300    

  Total (Bonds Excluded) 216,626,715   209,740,205   210,561,957   210,586,644   212,216,649   215,545,826   221,202,119  

RESERVES
  Beginning Balance 35,386,593     38,052,698     36,481,330     32,933,066     25,808,776     16,647,260     7,079,895       

  Ending Balance 38,052,698     36,481,330     32,933,066     25,808,776     16,647,260     7,079,895        (635,299)         

  Change 2,666,105        (1,571,368)      (3,548,264)      (7,124,289)      (9,161,516)      (9,567,365)      (7,715,194)     

BALANCE
  Zero Balance Required ‐                               0.00                             0.00                             (0.00)                           0.00                             0.00                             0.00                            

BUDGET PROJECTIONS

Page 1

73



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Enrollment Report 
 
MEETING DATE: April 4, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Enrollment Report – The monthly report on district-wide student enrollment. 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval              Discussion             Information Only     x                                 .       
 
BACKGROUND: n/a 
  
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: n/a 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: n/a 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

74

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



March 21, 2011

Millard Public Schools

Total Enrollment

SpEd

Cluster Current Current YTD Sept. 2010

Elementary K 1 2 3 4 5 Prgm Total Change Change Enrollment

Abbott (3 unit) 65 75 82 68 70 72 432 0 0 432

Ackerman (4 unit) 69 79 88 92 88 83 499 -1 -3 502

Aldrich (3 unit) 62 91 59 65 96 71 444 0 -1 445

Black Elk (4 unit) 71 85 87 96 103 88 530 -2 4 526

Bryan (3 unit) 64 63 68 60 60 68 383 2 0 383

Cather (3 unit) 77 74 73 82 73 69 448 0 -10 458

Cody (2 unit) 30 32 29 31 40 25 23 210 -4 -1 211

Cottonwood (3 unit) 64 59 53 51 57 60 344 0 0 344

Disney (3 unit) 41 43 37 41 40 34 17 253 -2 -7 260

Ezra Millard (3 unit) 61 61 58 68 58 72 14 392 5 4 388

Harvey Oaks (2 unit) 40 51 47 42 46 56 282 -1 -1 283

Hitchcock (2 unit) 29 34 27 29 30 27 17 193 -1 0 193

Holling Heights (3 unit) 66 59 60 61 60 68 10 384 -1 6 378

Montclair (4 unit) 86 94 87 86 87 86 526 2 3 523

Morton (3 unit) 60 49 53 54 64 72 16 368 2 6 362

Neihardt (4 unit) 78 102 82 95 104 97 558 1 -4 562

Norris (3 unit) 59 73 60 53 60 66 371 1 5 366

Reagan (4 unit) 123 106 120 108 95 77 629 -4 -9 638

Reeder (3 unit) 99 85 68 98 84 81 19 534 -1 3 531

Rockwell (3 unit) 57 53 56 49 55 50 18 338 1 1 337

Rohwer (3 unit) 65 76 65 81 79 82 15 463 -1 1 462

Sandoz (3 unit) 53 53 52 60 39 50 307 2 1 306

Upchurch   (3 unit) 105 111 84 70 60 45 475 1 1 474

Wheeler (4 unit) 78 93 106 101 110 111 20 619 2 3 616

Willowdale (3 unit) 62 61 64 70 67 93 417 2 11 406

Totals 1664 1762 1665 1711 1725 1703 169 10399 3 13 10386

SpEd Sep-10

Middle 6 7 8 Prgm* Total Change Change Enrollment

Andersen MS 229 256 266 0 751 1 3 748

Beadle MS 337 273 308 27 918 -3 -1 919

Central MS 248 248 251 26 747 -7 -3 750

Kiewit MS 289 283 309 0 881 3 3 878

North MS 239 316 253 17 808 -5 -5 813

Russell MS 281 289 282 0 852 -2 3 849

MS Alternative 6 13 15 34 11 13 21

Totals 1629 1678 1684 70 4991 -2 13 4978

High 9 10 11 12

North HS 618 617 578 540 23 2353 -13 -42 2395

South HS 495 497 465 450 30 1907 -13 -63 1970

West HS 595 553 512 466 33 2126 -7 -50 2176

Horizon HS 0 1 55 57 113 -4 -9 122

Totals 1708 1668 1610 1513 86 6499 -37 -164 6663

*Sped Program Included in MS/HS Grade Level totals Contracted SPED 46 1 6 40

HS Totals reflect early grads YTD:  MWHS 33; MHHS 31; MNHS 26; MSHS 35 Young Adult Program 45 -2 -7 52

Preschool SPED Not SPED Total Ombudsman (Primary) 15 6 -14 29

Bryan 5 31 36 Total District K-12 21995 -34 -153 22148

Cody 57 30 87 Total District PreK-12 22653 -26 -102 22755

Cody Early Start 4 9 13

Disney 18 13 31
Hitchcock 27 9 36 Elementary Elementary 10386

Holling Heights 1 29 30  Middle School 4991 Middle Sch 4978

Montclair 24 9 33 High School 6499 High Sch 6663

Montclair Montessori 0 81 81 Contracted 46 Contracted 40

Neihardt 2 35 37 Young Adult 45 Young Adult 52

Norris ELL 1 17 18 Ombudsman (Primary) 15 Ombudsman (Primary) 29

Norris Montessori 1 16 17   TOTAL 21995   TOTAL 22148

Rockwell 1 35 36
Sandoz 13 4 17
Sandoz ELL 5 30 35
Wheeler 33 9 42
Homebased Infants 108 1 109
TOTAL 658

Career Academies NHS SHS WHS HHS TOTAL

Culinary 3 7 5 15
Education 4 8 20 32
Entrepreneurship 6 3 7 16
Finance 3 3 6
Health Services 13 19 9 41
TDL  4 4
Ombudsman  (Primary and Secondary Assignment) 36

3/21/2011 9/23/2010

10399

22,025 22,171 22,148 22,151 22,117 22,109 22,037 22,029 21,995

19,000

19,500

20,000

20,500

21,000

21,500

22,000

22,500

Sep-09 Aug-10 Sep-10 10-Oct Nov-10 Dec-10 Jan-11 Feb-11 Mar-11

K-12 Enrollment 2010-11

75



Elementary Classroom Enrollment Class
Current Current YTD Sept. 2010 Size W/out

K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment SPED
Abbott 23 18 20 23 23 24

21 19 21 22 23 24
21 19 21 23 24 24

19 20
Total Students 65 75 82 68 70 72 432 0 0 432 432
Total Teachers 3 4 4 3 3 3 20 20
Classroom Avg 21.67 18.8 20.5 22.7 23.3 24.0 22 22

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Ackerman 19 20 19 25 24 20
18 20 16 23 22 22
14 20 18 24 19 19
18 19 17 20 23 22

18
Total Students 69 79 88 92 88 83 499 -1 -3 502 499
Total Teachers 4 4 5 4 4 4 25 25
Classroom Avg 17.3 19.8 17.6 23.0 22.0 20.8 20 20

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Aldrich 21 23 20 22 24 23
21 23 20 22 24 24
20 23 19 21 25 24

22 23
Total Students 62 91 59 65 96 71 444 0 -1 445 444
Total Teachers 3 4 3 3 4 3 20 20
Classroom Avg 20.7 23.0 19.7 21.7 24.0 23.7 22 22

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Black Elk 18 22 22 26 26 23
17 21 21 26 25 22
19 22 22 22 26 21
17 20 22 22 26 22

Total Students 71 85 87 96 103 88 530 -2 4 526 530
Total Teachers 4 4 4 4 4 4 24 24
Classroom Avg 17.8 21.3 21.8 24.0 25.8 22.0 22 22

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Bryan 21 16 23 20 20 23
22 16 23 20 20 23
21 16 22 20 20 22

15
Total Students 64 63 68 60 60 68 383 2 0 383 383
Total Teachers 3 4 3 3 3 3 19 19
Classroom Avg 21.3 15.8 22.7 20.0 20.0 22.7 20 20

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 C-K C-1 C-2 C-3 C-4 C-5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Cather 15 14 14 16 14 25 24 23 24 24 22 23
14 16 13 18 14 24 21 22 24 23 21

Total Students 29 30 27 34 28 25 48 44 46 48 45 44 448 0 -10 458 448
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 23 23
Classroom Avg 14.5 15.0 13.5 16.0 14.0 25.0 24.0 22.0 23.0 24.0 22.5 22.0 19 19

SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Cody 15 16 13 17 20 25 7
15 16 16 14 20 8

8
Total Students 30 32 29 31 40 25 23 210 -4 -1 211 187
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 1 3 14 11
Classroom Avg 15.0 16.0 14.5 15.5 20.0 25.0 7.7 15 17

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Cottonwood 22 21 17 16 19 20
21 19 18 18 19 19
21 19 18 17 19 21

Total Students 64 59 53 51 57 60 344 0 0 344 344
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 18 18
Classroom Avg 21.3 19.7 17.7 17.0 19.0 20.0 19 19

SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Disney 20 14 21 19 19 17 9
21 14 16 22 21 17 8

15

Total Students 41 43 37 41 40 34 17 253 -2 -7 260 236
Total Teachers 2 3 2 2 2 2 2 15 13
Classroom Avg 20.50 14.33 18.50 20.50 20.00 17.00 9 17 18

76



Class
SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010 Size W/out

K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment SPED
Ezra Millard 20 21 19 23 20 24 8

21 20 20 23 18 24 6
20 20 19 22 20 24

Total Students 61 61 58 68 58 72 14 392 5 4 388 378
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 20 18
Classroom Avg 20.3 20.3 19.3 22.7 19.3 24.0 7 20 21

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Harvey Oaks 20 16 24 21 23 17
20 17 23 21 23 20

18 19
Total Students 40 51 47 42 46 56 282 -1 -1 283 282
Total Teachers 2 3 2 2 2 3 14 14
Classroom Avg 20.0 17.0 23.5 21.0 23.0 18.7 20 20

SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Hitchcock 16 17 13 15 15 27 8
13 17 14 14 15 9

Total Students 29 34 27 29 30 27 17 193 -1 0 193 176
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 13 11
Classroom Avg 14.5 17.0 13.5 14.5 15.0 27.0 8.5 15 16

SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Holling Heights 23 21 21 19 19 23 6
21 18 19 22 20 22 4
22 20 20 20 21 23

Total Students 66 59 60 61 60 68 10 384 -1 6 378 374
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 20 18
Classroom Avg 22.0 19.7 20.0 20.3 20.0 22.7 5.0 19 21

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 M-K M1-3 M4-5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Montclair 22 23 21 20 20 25 14 24 18
20 23 21 18 22 26 16 23 20

14 24 22
24 20
23
23

Total Students 42 46 42 38 42 51 44 141 80 526 2 3 523 526
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 6 4 25 25
Classroom Avg 21.0 23.0 21.0 19.0 21.0 25.5 14.7 23.5 20.0 21 21

SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Morton 22 21 20 17 23 24 7
17 16 19 17 21 25 9
21 12 14 20 20 23

Total Students 60 49 53 54 64 72 16 368 2 6 362 352
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 2.0 20 18
Classroom Avg 20.0 16.3 17.7 18.0 21.3 24.0 8.0 18 20

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Neihardt 19 20 21 25 20 24
19 21 21 23 21 24
20 20 20 24 21 25
20 21 20 23 21 24

20 21
Total Students 78 102 82 95 104 97 558 1 -4 562 558
Total Teachers 4 5 4 4 5 4 26 26
Classroom Avg 19.5 20.4 20.5 23.8 20.8 24.3 21 21

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 M-K M1-3 M4-5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Norris 19 25 21 17 19 24 11 20 21
19 24 20 20 20 24 10 19 18

20

Total Students 38 49 41 37 39 48 21 59 39 371 1 5 366 371
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 2 19 19
Classroom Avg 19.0 24.5 20.5 18.5 19.5 24.0 10.5 19.7 19.5 20 20

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Reagan 20 22 22 22 18 20
20 21 16 20 19 20
21 21 23 22 20 18
21 20 20 22 20 19
21 22 21 22 18
20 18

Total Students 123 106 120 108 95 77 629 -4 -9 638 629
Total Teachers 6 5 6 5 5 4 31 31
Classroom Avg 20.5 21.2 20.0 21.6 19.3 19.3 20 20

77



SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Reeder 20 23 23 24 23 15 9
21 21 23 25 21 20 10
20 21 22 25 25 24
20 20 24 15 22
18

Total Students 99 85 68 98 84 81 19 534 -1 3 531 515
Total Teachers 5 4 3 4 4 4 2 26 24
Classroom Avg 20.3 21.7 22.7 24.7 23.0 19.7 9.5 21 21

SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Rockwell 19 18 19 24 19 25 9
19 18 19 25 18 25 9
19 17 18 18

Total Students 57 53 56 49 55 50 18 338 1 1 337 320
Total Teachers 3 3 3 2 3 2 2 18 16
Classroom Avg 19.0 17.7 18.7 24.5 18.3 25.0 9.0 19 20

SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Rohwer 21 20 24 21 19 20 8
21 20 18 19 21 21 7
23 19 23 20 19 21

17 21 20 20

Total Students 65 76 65 81 79 82 15 463 -1 1 462 448
Total Teachers 3 4 3 4 4 4 2 24 22
Classroom Avg 21.7 19.0 21.7 20.3 19.8 20.5 8.0 19 20

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Sandoz 17 19 17 20 20 25
18 17 18 20 19 25
18 17 17 20

Total Students 53 53 52 60 39 50 307 2 1 306 307
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 2 2 16 16
Classroom Avg 17.7 17.7 17.3 20.0 19.5 25.0 19 19

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Upchurch 22 23 21 23 21 23
20 22 20 24 20 22
21 22 21 23 19
21 21 22
21 23

Total Students 105 111 84 70 60 45 475 1 1 474 475
Total Teachers 5 5 4 3 3 2 22 22
Classroom Avg 21.0 22.2 21.0 23.3 20.0 22.5 22 22

SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Wheeler 20 21 20 21 22 23 9
20 19 20 21 19 16 6
18 16 22 18 23 26 5
20 20 22 21 23 23

17 22 20 23 23

Total Students 78 93 106 101 110 111 20 619 2 3 616 599
Total Teachers 4 5 5 5 5 5 3 32 29
Classroom Avg 19.5 18.6 21.2 20.0 22.0 22.2 6.7 19 21

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Willowdale 20 21 22 24 23 23
21 20 21 23 23 23
21 20 21 23 21 23

24
Total Students 62 61 64 70 67 93 417 2 11 406 417
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 4 19 19
Classroom Avg 20.7 20.3 21.3 23.3 22.3 23.3 22 22

Elementary Totals SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
Grade K 1 2 3 4 5 M-1 M-2 M-3  M-4 M-5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment
Students 1664 1762 1665 1711 1725 1703 72 64 64 66 53 169 10399 3 13 10386 10230
Teachers 86 87 81 78 80 74 9 6 22 523 501
Classroom Avg 19.3 20.3 20.6 21.9 21.6 23.0 7.7 19.88 20.419

SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
6 7 8 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Andersen MS 229 256 266 0 751 1 3 748
Beadle MS 337 273 308 27 918 -3 -1 919
Central MS 248 248 251 26 747 -7 -3 750
Kiewit MS 289 283 309 0 881 3 3 878

North MS 239 316 253 17 808 -5 -5 813
Russell MS 281 289 282 0 852 -2 3 849
MS Alternative 6 13 15 34 11 13 21
Totals 1629 1678 1684 70 4991 -2 13 4978

9 10 11 12
North HS 618 617 578 540 23 2353 -13 -42 2395
South HS 495 497 465 450 30 1907 -13 -63 1970
West HS 595 553 512 466 33 2126 -7 -50 2176
Horizon HS 0 1 55 57 113 -4 -9 122
Totals 1708 1668 1610 1513 86 6499 -37 -164 6663

Contracted SPED 46 1 6 40
Young Adult Program 45 -2 -7 52
Ombudsman (Primary Enrollment) 15 6 -14 29
Total District Enrollment 21995 -34 -153 22148

78



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Insurance Report 
 
MEETING DATE: April 4, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Insurance Report – A report on a proposal to use self-insurance for general 

liability, auto liability, and school board legal liability. 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval              Discussion             Information Only      x                                .       
 
BACKGROUND: Each year the Harry A. Koch Company (HAKCO) “markets” our insurance 

coverage seeking the best value for the District.  This year, in addition to looking 
at traditional insurance sources, they studied the possibility of a self-insurance 
program for our liability coverage (similar to what we are doing with health 
insurance). 

 
 Representatives of HAKCO will be at the meeting and will present information on 

the use of self-insurance for liability coverage.  (See their presentation materials 
attached.) 

 
 So far, we find the proposal to be encouraging.  And, unless there is something 

significant that has not yet surfaced, we will be recommending this proposal to the 
board.  The final decision must be made in time so that arrangements can be made 
to switch to the self-funded retention program by June 1st when our present 
policies expire. 

 
 [Note:  At the board meeting, we will be listening closely to board comments.  If 

there are no opposing comments, we plan to proceed further with the project and 
seek proposals from third-party administrators (TPAs).  After getting specific 
dollar information for TPAs, we will be in a position to make a final 
recommendation to the board.] 

  
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES:  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE:  
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION:  
 
TIMELINE:  
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

79

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Millard Public Schools

Board Meeting:  April 4, 2011

80



Agenda

• Expense Management Challenges

• Who is United Educators

• Features of United Educators Program

• Comparing the Options & Coverages

• Next Steps

Agenda 81



Who is United Educators?

• Exclusive Focus on the Education Industry

• Non Accessible Reciprocal Risk Retention 

Group started in 1980

• Currently 1,160 Educational Institutions are 

Subscribers/Members

• Financial Stability - AM Best Rating of “A 

Excellent”

• Over a 97% Retention of EU Members Renew 

Annually

82



Program Features
• Homogenous Risk Retention Group

• Long-Term Control and Stability

• Specific Member Self-Insured Retentions; “per 

occurrence” and “annual stop loss aggregate.” Example: 

$100,000 each occurrence; $1,000,000 annual stop loss

• Select Excess Limits up to $25 Million Available

• Lines of Coverage: GL, SBLL, EPLI, Medical Nurses 

Professional Liability

• TPA  Claims Management Administration 

83



Risk Services
• Annual Public School Conference

• Public School News (published three times a 
year)

• Public School Advisory Committee Meeting 
(quarterly, via phone roundtables)

• K-12 Highlights (link in the UE Risk Management 
Library)

• Educator Sexual Misconduct Policy Guide, 
written by Karen-Ann Broe

84



Insurance Coverages
School Board Legal Liability

General Liability
•Products Liability

•Completed Operations
•Nurse Professional

•Employee Benefit Error & Omission

Automobile Liability
• Liability Only

85



Specific Excess Insurance

General
Liability

Auto
Liability

Self Insured Retention
$100,000

School Board
Liability

Excess Coverage
$5,000,000

(Per occurrence 
GL & Auto)

Notes:      1) Defense costs outside of policy limits
2) Basket deductible of $100,000 per occurrence
3) Defense costs part of $100,000 SIR for MPS
4) Nurse professional included

86



Claimant

Service Flow

United Educators

The Harry A. Koch Co.

Third Party Administrator
tbd

Millard Public Schools

87



a typicalyear

88



Travelers
SBLL
Auto
GL

Loss Example #1
Average Year with $75,000 of total losses and no one 

claim over $100,000

$180,000 
Premium

$75,000 Avg Loss Year

$25,000 TPA Costs

Guaranteed Cost 
Program

Total Cost
$280,000

Total Current 
Premium

$510,000

United Educators

89



single catastrophic
Occurrence

90



Travelers
SBLL
Auto
GL

Loss Example #2
Average Year with $75,000 of total losses and 

one occurrence of $1,000,000

$180,000 
Premium

$75,000 Avg Loss Year

$30,000 TPA Costs

Guaranteed Cost 
Program

Total Cost
$385,000

Total Current 
Premium
$510,000

United Educators

$100,000 Large Loss

91



Current National Subscribers
• Albuquerque Public Schools, 

NM

• Dayton City Public Schools, 
OH

• Maryland Association of 
Boards of Education Insurance 
Group, MD

• Miami-Dade County Public 
Schools, FL

• Missouri United Schools 
Insurance Council, MO

• Nevada Public Agency 
Insurance Group, NV

• New York Schools Insurance 
Reciprocal, NY

• Oklahoma School Insurance 
Group, OK

• Schools of Ohio Risk Sharing 
Authority, OH

• Mississippi Valley Insurance 
Cooperative, IL

• Texas Association of Public 
Schools, TX

• Tulsa Public Schools, TX

• Ventura County Schools Self-
Funding Authority, CA

• Washington School Risk 
Management Program, WA

92



Current Nebraska Subscribers

• Hastings College

• Peru State College

• Doane College

• Chadron College

• University of Nebraska  

• Douglas County School District #001

93



what’s
next?

• Underwriting Process
• Feasibility Study/ TPA Selection
• Coverage Analysis
• Long-Term Approach
• Coordination of Other Coverages
• June 1st Implementation

94



 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Legislative Update 
 
MEETING DATE: April 4, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT: Office of the Superintendent    
 
TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Legislative Update for the 102nd Legislature 1st session. 
 
ACTION DESIRED: APPROVAL          DISCUSSION          INFORMATION ONLY   XX      
 
The legislative summary is attached.   
 
 

   
 
 
 
   
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
STRATEGIC PLAN:  Implemented Strategies and Superintendent’s Goals 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON:  Angelo Passarelli 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:                                                                  
        (Signature) 
 
 

95

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Legislative Update 
April 4, 2011 
 
K-12 Funding  
LB 235 is set for debate soon.  The number for state aid is up 12 million so we are looking at 
822 Million.  The Governor’s proposal was 810 million. 
 
Commission of Industrial Relations 
This bill should be out soon.  The NASB does not yet support the changes.  The NCSA has 
indicated some support.  I think all the other groups involved are supportive.  I should have the 
details of the agreement soon.   
 
Bills of Interest 
LB 558 was moved to final reading.  This bill allows joint entities to operate focus schools and 
if they support the diversity plan they will be entitled to an increase in state aid.   
 
There are several bills that change the school aid formula to reflect the reductions they 
intend to make.  
LB 235 reduces state aid with a goal of reaching 838 million in funding. 
 
LB 364 reduces allowances for student growth, instructional time and advanced teaching 
degrees.  We oppose this bill. 
 
Learning Community Bills 
LB 463 changes provisions relating to truancy 
LB 558 changes the provisions relating to focus schools 
 
These following two bills are not out of committee. 
LB 615 changes provisions relating to access to student records 
LB 636 changes provisions relating to access to student records 
 
A listing of bills we are tracking is attached.   
 
National News and Advocacy Issues 
President Barack Obama said Monday that he envisions a new federal education law that 
relies less on standardized tests to measure achievement. "Too often what we have been 
doing is using these tests to punish students or to, in some cases, punish schools," he said 
during a town hall event. Obama also pointed out that over-testing can take the fun out of 
learning for students. He said standardized tests should not be the only measure of student -- 

96



and school -- achievement, and that perhaps tests should not be administered annually, but 
rather every few years. 
 
Federal Budget Cuts 
Education advocates, schools and districts are awaiting word about the severity of K-12 cuts 
as Congress prepares to meet an April 8 deadline for crafting a new fiscal 2011 budget plan. A 
series of short-term fixes has eliminated funding for high-profile programs such as Head Start 
and the Striving Readers Program. However, while Republican leaders are calling for deeper, 
long-term cuts to education this year, President Barack Obama has said he will oppose any 
additional reductions for schools. 

97



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB18 Adams Provide for distribution of allocations from the federal Education Jobs Fund Education
01/18/11
1:30 p.m. 
Room 1525

01/19/11 01/21/11 01/31/11 Passed 
02-04-11
Signed by the 
Governor 
02/10/11

Support

LB19 McCoy Prohibit the use of certain drug substances as prescribed

Adds to Schedule 1 of the controlled substances act Any material, compound, mixture, or preparation 
containing any detectable quantity of synthetically produced cannabinoids. Makes such substances 
unlawful to posses.  Punishment for such offense shall be equal to those of possession of marijuana. 

Judiciary
01/19/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1113

01/21/11 02/15/11 02/10/11 Passed w/E
02/16/11
Signed by the 
Governor 
02/23/11

Support

LB33 Louden Change valuation of agricultural and horticultural land

Beginning January 1, 2012 Ag and horticultural land shall be valued at 70 rather than 75% of its actual 
value.  Changes acceptable range for valuation from 69-75% to 64-70% of actual value.  Changes state aid 
value of ag and horticultural land to 67 rather than 72%.  

Revenue
01/21/11 
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Oppose

LB50 Krist Adopt the Elementary and Secondary Educational Opportunity Act and provide for income tax credits

Provides income tax credits for contributions to entities that provide scholarships to children attending 
privately operated elementary or secondary schools.  Scholarships can only be granted to kids of certain 
incomes. For grades K-8, the household income eligibility is three times the standard for free or reduced 
price lunch; for grades 9-12 the eligibility is increased to four times.

Revenue
02/16/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Oppose

Telephone:  402.434.3399 | Fax:  402.434.3390

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
LEGISLATIVE SUMMARY

102nd Legislature - First Session - 2011

530 South 13th Street | Suite 110 | Lincoln, Nebraska 68508

98



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB53 Krist Change free transportation provisions relating to learning community students

Provides that Learning Community school districts must provide free transportation to students residing in 
the learning community and attending school in the school district if the student is transferring pursuant to 
the open enrollment provisions of section 79-2110 and either (i) is a
student who contributes to the socioeconomic diversity of enrollment at the school building to which he or 
she attends, transfers and lives more than one mile from the school to which he or she transfers, or (ii) is a 
student attending a focus school or program and lives more than one mile from the school building housing 
the focus school or program.

Deletes eligibility for free and reduced lunch kids who don't affect diversity of building.

Education
02/28/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Support

LB58 Adams Provide for a study of dual-enrollment courses and career academies

Provides that the Coordinating Commission for Postsecondary Education should study dual enrollment 
courses and report to the Legislature before December 15, 2011.  

Education
03/15/11
at 1:30 p.m.
room 1525

Support

LB84 Fischer

FISCHER 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Adopt the Build Nebraska Act and authorize bonds for the highway system

• The bill establishes the Build Nebraska Act and Creates the State Highway Capitol Improvement Fund for 
surface transportation projects, providing for security, investment, and repayment of bonds.  
• Funding:  ½ cent of existing sales tax for 20 years,  raising $125 million annually         
• Effective:  2013
• Funds shall be used as follows:

$60 million will be used to pay for surface transportation projects of the
                 highest priority of NDOR                
$20 million for cities and counties
$15 million for completion of expressway system
$25 million for used for payment of bonds and interest, bonding limit not to
            exceed $500 million   (Bonds must be issued between 2013 and 2018.) 

Revenue
02/10/11
at 1:30 p.m.
room 1524

02/17/11 03/25/11 Oppose

LB123 Heidemann Provide for disciplinary actions and policies relating to cyber-bullying

Provides that cyber-bullying shall constitute, in some cases, grounds for long-term suspension, expulsion, 
or mandatory reassignment.  Cyber-bullying means any ongoing use of electronic mail, text messaging, 
social networking web sites, or any other form of electronic communication, on or off of school grounds, 
with the intention of causing harm or serious emotional distress to students or school personnel. Requires 
school districts to develop policies concerning cyber-bullying prevention and education.

Education
01/18/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

99



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB125 Avery Create the Children's Health Advisory Committee

To create and provide duties for the Children's Health Advisory Committee, to provide duties for the chief 
executive officer of the Department of Health and Human Services and the Commissioner of Education to 
provide for and require schools to implement nutrition and physical activity standards.

Health and 
Human Services
02/10/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1510

Oppose

LB130 Heidemann Provide for adjustment of formula need in calculation of state aid to schools

Provides that for school fiscal years 2011-12 and 2012-13, if the total amount of TEEOSA Aid as 
determined by the department to be distributed to school districts is different than the total amount of funds 
appropriated for distribution, the department shall proportionally adjust each district's formula need as 
calculated pursuant to section 12 79-1007.11 so that the total amount of aid determined is equal to the 
amount of funds appropriated.

Education
01/25/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Killed 
02/17/11

Oppose

LB143 Haar Require public education institutions to file certain contracts of employment with the Nebraska 
Accountability and Disclosure Commission

Provides that public schools shall file with the Accountability and Disclosure Commission a copy of each 
contract of employment for officials of the institution with the title or function of president, vice president, 
chancellor, superintendent, assistant superintendent, chief executive officer, or chief financial officer or any 
other senior administrative personnel under contract with the institution performing similar functions. The 
contract of employment shall include the salary and benefit package provided to the official and shall 
identify each benefit provided and its source and value.

Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs
02/17/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1507

Killed 
03/09/11

Oppose

LB145 Haar Provide for school transportation safety committees

Provides for creation of school transportation safety committees and submission of child access routing 
plans for each school within a school district.  Further provides for committee procedures when a new 
school is proposed.  

Education
02/28/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB148 Avery Exclude lobbying expenses from the definition of general fund operating expenditures for state aid to 
education purposes

The one-liner says it all.

Education
01/31/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB149 Avery Adopt the Blind Persons Literacy Rights and Education Act

Provides that a teacher employed by or under contract with a school district, educational service unit, other 
education agency, or the State Department of Education who teaches blind or visually impaired children 
shall demonstrate competence in reading and writing Braille. Provides how such demonstration may be 
made.

Education
02/08/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

100



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB173 Avery Prohibit natural resources district board members from running for or holding more than one office

No person serving in a natural resource district shall simultaneously hold another high elective office.
 


Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs
02/02/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1507

Monitor ?

LB189 Council Adopt the Criminal Offender Employment Act

On an initial application for public employment, there shall be no question or checkbox for the applicant 
regarding the applicant's criminal record. Any criminal record of the applicant shall not operate as an 
automatic bar to otherwise qualified applicants in obtaining public employment and shall only be taken into 
consideration after the applicant has been selected as a finalist for employment. Certain criminal records 
shall not be used in connection with application for public employment.

Business and 
Labor
01/24/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 2102

Oppose

LB192 Council Require school districts to offer instruction in sexual health education

Provides that beginning with school year 2012-13, each school district must offer instruction in sexual 
health education with a curriculum pursuant to listed criteria in the bill and State Board of Education 
regulations.

Education
02/08/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB204 Council

COUNCIL 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Require blood-lead testing prior to enrollment in school

Provides that school districts shall require students to have undergone lead testing after the age of 18 
months and before the age of 4 years.  Provides for testing and notification procedures.

Education
02/08/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

03/08/11 03/28/11 Oppose

LB235 Adams

ADAMS PRIORITY 
BILL (2011)

Change provisions relating to state aid to schools

Reduces the base limitation rate for school district to 0.5% for 2011-12 and 2012-13. Elements of the 
budget lids would be permanently modified. Modifications that would reduce the total amount of state aid: 
The cost growth factor would be permanently reduced by eliminating the factor that is added on to the two 
years of basic allowable growth rates in the calculation. The upper and lower ends of the range for need 
stabilization would be reduced by 5% for 2011-12. The threshold for the averaging adjustment would also 
be reduced by 5% for 2011-12 and the additional 0.5% that is used in the calculation of the threshold would 
be permanently eliminated to reflect the change in the cost growth factor. The local effort rate would be 
increased from $1.00 to $1.025 for 2011-12 and 2012-13. The allocated income tax reduction would be 
extended for 2011-12 and 2012-13 and would be increased to $21 million. NCSA Summary.

It is istimated that LB235 would decrease the amount of state aid distributed in FY2011-12 by $140.9 
million and the amount distributed in FY2012-13 by $172.8 million of general funds

Education
01/25/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

03/28/11 Support

101



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB236 Adams Change provisions relating to state aid to schools

Reduces the base limitation rate for school district to 0% for 2011-12 and 2012-13, which would affect 
budget lids and several elements of the aid formula.  Elements of the budget lids would be permanently 
modified.  Modifications reducing total amount of state aid:  The cost growth factor would be permanently 
reduced by eliminating the factor that is added on to the two years of basic allowable growth rates in the 
calculation.  Need stabilization and the averaging adjustment would be eliminated beginning with the 2011-
12 calculation of aid.  The local effort rate would be increased from $1.00 to $1.025 for 2011-12 and 2012-
13.  The allocated income tax reduction would be extended for 2011-12 and 2012-13 and would be 
increased to $21 million. NCSA Summary.

It is estimated that LB236 would decrease the amount of state aid distributed in FY2011-12 by $184.8 
million and the amount distributed in FY2012-13 by $231.9 million of general funds.

Education
01/25/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB247 Pahls Adopt the Classrooms First Act

Requires 65% or more of each district’s total operating expenditures on direct classroom instruction 
beginning in 2012-13.  Defines what constitutes “direct classroom instruction”. Requires Commissioner of 
Education to send an “intervention team” to any district failing to comply, in order to help the school board 
and administration meet the requirements of the legislation.  Beginning in 2013-14, failure to comply for 
three consecutive years would mean loss of accreditation. NCSA Summary.

Education
01/25/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB260 Lathrop Adopt the Concussion Awareness Act

Provides that after a concussion or brain injury is sustained or suspected to have been sustained, schools are 
to prohibit athletes from playing or practicing again until they have been cleared by a health care 
professional.  Requires schools to make available training to recognize the symptoms of a concussion or 
brain injury and send out information regarding concussion and brain injury information on annual basis to 
student athletes.  Cities, villages, businesses, and non-profits who organize youth athletic activities must 
also provide information on concussions and brain injuries to participants, make available training, and 
prohibit an athlete from resuming playing or practicing after a  concussion or brain injury is sustained or 
suspected to have been sustained until cleared by a health care professional.

Health and 
Human Services
01/27/11 
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1510

02/15/11 03/09/11 03/23/11 Support

LB266 Sullivan Change the Open Meetings Act relating to closed sessions

Provides that a public body may go into closed session for the evaluation of the job performance of a 
nonelected official or employee if such person has not requested a public meeting.  Current statute provides 
the body may go into closed session for evaluation of the job performance of a person when necessary to 
prevent needless injury to the reputation of a person and if such person has not requested a public meeting.

Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs
01/26/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1507

Support

102



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB273 Dubas Change the Tax Equity and Educational Opportunities Support Act to provide for converted contracts and 
converted contract option students

Education
01/31/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Support

LB283 Haar

HAAR PRIORITY 
BILL (2011)

Provide school boards with tax levy and bond authority relating to energy efficiency projects

Permits tax levy authority and bond authority for energy efficiency projects under the existing 
environmental hazard/accessibility barrier abatement provisions of law.  NCSA Summary.  

Education
03/01/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

03/09/11 03/23/11 Support

LB287 Adams Change provisions relating to summer school and early childhood summer sessions

Expands the existing TEEOSA summer school allowance for students enrolled in a summer session of an 
early childhood education program.  Changes the calculation of the allowance.  Further provides that each 
school district will receive an additional six-tenths of a summer school student unit for each early childhood 
education student unit attributed to a free lunch and free milk. NCSA Summary.

Education
01/31/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Support

LB364 Fischer Change provisions relating to calculation of state aid to schools

Revises state aid formula to eliminate the instructional time allowance, the teacher education allowance, 
and the student growth adjustment for computation of state aid in school fiscal year 2011-12 and beyond.  
Although the effect on individual school districts is not yet known, Senator Fischer has indicated her intent 
was to reduce the total liability for state aid to schools.  NCSA Summary.

Education
01/31/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB381 Speaker Flood Change provisions relating to educational service units, withdraw from the Compact for Education, and 
eliminate a student achievement coordinator

Education
02/14/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Monitor? 

103



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB382 Nordquist

NE RETIREMENT 
SYSTEMS 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Change deposit and contribution rates for certain retirement systems

Requires School Retirement Fund retirement contributions from employees of 9.28% of compensation from 
9/2011 through 8/2013 and contributions of 8.28% from 9/2013 through 8/2014.  The most recent required 
contribution was 8.28%.  From 7/2011 until 7/2013, requires retirement contributions paid by Nebraska 
State Patrol officers or paid on the officer’s behalf of 19%of monthly compensation. From 2013 onward, 
requires 16% contribution.  Provides for assessments against the appropriation of the Nebraska State Patrol 
in those amounts for those periods.  

NCSA:  Proposes to change the employee contribution rate for the School Employees Plan from 8.28% to 
9.28% effective September 1, 2011.  The employer rate (equal to 101% of the employee rate) would 
increase from 8.36% to 9.37%.  It is important to note that the bill was introduced on behalf of the 
Governor and that, while the proposal calls for a full percentage increase, the Retirement Committee is not 
bound to that idea.  It is likely that LB 382 will be advanced from committee this session, but it may not 
have to include a full percent increase.  Talks are under way to examine, for instance, a half percent 
increase or some figure less than a full percent.  The underlying objective is to address the immediate 
actuarial shortfall and to be cognizant of the increased burden placed on employees as well as employers.

Nebraska 
Retirement 
Systems
02/01/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Monitor ?

LB397 Lathrop

BUSINESS AND 
LABOR PRIORITY 
BILL (2011)

Redefine a term in the Industrial Relations Act

Clarifies that the reference to employer in the definition of employee refers to the definition of employer 
provided by the Industrial Relations Act.  Shell bill for CIR.

See LB 619, LB 664, LR29CA

Business and 
Labor
02/07/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Monitor ?

LB430 Cornett Change property tax levy limitations

Provides that property tax levies for “bonds as defined in section 10-134” rather than “bonded 
indebtedness” are not subject to the local government levy limits established under section 77-3442.  
Resolves a dispute between State Auditor’s office and certain SIDs.    

ENDC legislation

Revenue
02/02/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

03/04/11 Support

LB439 Heidemann Change valuation of agricultural and horticultural land for school tax purposes

Provides that for school district taxation purposes, agricultural and horticultural land shall be valued at 65% 
of its actual value, and greenland 65% of its special value.  Provides that the acceptable range of TERC 
variation for such land for school district taxation purposes is 59% to 65% of actual value.  For purposes of 
TEEOSA, provides that agricultural and horticultural land has a state aid value of 62% of actual value and 
greenland has a state aid value of 62% of the special valuation. NCSA summary.  

Revenue
03/03/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Oppose

104



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB440 Heidemann Change adjusted-valuation provisions within the Tax Equity and Educational Opportunities Support Act

Provides for a gradual reduction (1% per year) in agricultural and horticultural land state aid value and 
greenland state aid value from the current 72% to 62% of actual value over the course of the next 10 years.  
The state aid value is used to calculate TEEOSA aid. NCSA Summary.

Education
02/01/11 at 
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Killed 
2/17/2011

Oppose

LB446 Adams Change duties and funding provisions relating to educational service units

Provides that an ESU may consist of a single school district if that district is a Class IV or Class V district.  
Provides that only an ESU with four or members or that is composed of a single Class IV or V school 
district may levy a tax.  Provides for the calculation of the adjusted students number for a single member 
ESU.  Provides that it is the intent of the legislature that each multidistrict ESU use 5% of its funding for 
core services and technology infrastructure for cooperative projects between member school districts and 
5% for core services and technology infrastructure statewide projects.  

Education
02/14/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB463 Ashford

JUDICIARY 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Change juvenile penalty, records, service plan, probation sanctions, and truancy provisions

Expands access to sealed records to law enforcement agency if a person whose record has been sealed 
applies for employment with the law enforcement agency. All school districts shall have a policy that 
outlines how the school district and the county attorney will handle cases in which excessive absences are 
due to documented serious illness. If a child is absent more than ten days per year or the hourly equivalent 
or is suspended from school for any reason, the school district shall inform and request from juvenile 
probation officers as defined in section 29-2246, the Department of Health and Human Services and any 
private entity providing services to children and families pursuant to a contract with the department, and 
the Nebraska Commission on Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice any information relating to such child 
available to the officers, department, entities, and commission. The officers, department, entities, and 
commission shall provide any such information in their records to the school district. Includes reducing 
truancy in the list of duties of the learning community.  Redefines truancy as students who are absent for 
more than ten days each year.  

Judiciary
02/24/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1113

03/14/11 Oppose

LB482 Utter

UTTER PRIORITY 
BILL (2011)

Change provisions governing industrial disputes involving municipal corporations under the Industrial 
Relations Act

Business and 
Labor
02/07/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Support

105



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB486 Louden Change provisions relating to compensation and contributions under the School Employees Retirement Act

Sunsets the 7% rule effective June 30, 2012.  Thereafter, any amount of annual salary increase exceeding 
9% would be excluded for purposes of computation of retirement benefits and there would be no 
exemptions to this rule.  Currently, a plan member of the School Employees Retirement System applying 
for retirement benefits is subject to have his/her salary examined by NPERS (the Retirement Agency) for 
the 60 months leading up to the anticipated date of retirement.  Under the current rule, any amount of 
annual salary increase exceeding 7% would be excluded for purposes of computation of retirement benefits 
unless at least one of three exemptions applies.

NCSA:  Proposes to eliminate the 7% Rule under the School Employees Plan along with the three 
exemptions under the rule and, in exchange, to raise the cap for purposes of calculating benefits to 9% with 
no exemptions. Under the existing rule, a plan member applying for retirement benefits is subject to have 
his/her salary examined by NPERS (the Retirement Agency) for the 60 months leading up to the declared 
date of retirement.  Any amount of annual salary exceeding 7% would be excluded for purposes of 
computation of retirement benefits unless at least one of three exemptions applies.  The three exemptions 
are:  A.  Substantial change of employment position or duties, B.  Result of collective bargaining 
agreement, or C.  District-wide permanent benefit-plan change.

Under LB 486, the existing 7% Rule would sunset on June 30, 2012, and, beginning July 1, 2012, a new 
l  ld l  f  id i  f l  i  h  i  f b fi   U d  h  d l   

Nebraska 
Retirement 
Systems
02/08/11
at 12:10 p.m.
room 1525

Oppose

LB509 Nebraska Retirement 
Systems Committee

NE RETIREMENT 
SYSTEMS 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Change provisions relating to retirement

NCSA:  Represents the technical cleanup bill for the NPERS.  One of the more significant changes 
proposed in LB 509 is a re-codification effort to place all cost-of-living (COLA) related provisions of each 
retirement plan into one section of law and to eliminate obsolete language.  The bill does not change or alter 
any existing COLA laws.  The bill neither increases nor diminishes any benefit for current or future retires.

Nebraska 
Retirement 
Systems
02/08/11
at 12:10 p.m.
room 1525

03/04/11 03/22/11 Support

LB531 Fulton Change permissible budget reserves for schools

Lowers MPS allowable reserve percentage from 20% to 15%.  Provides that any reduction in a school 
district’s budget made to comply with the budget limitation under the state aid formula must affect 
classroom expenses at a last resort.  The obvious intent behind the bill is to force school districts to utilize 
its reserves toward instructional staff and to place instructional staff as the priority for budget expenditures.  
NCSA Summary.

Education
02/01/11 at 
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB537 Karpisek Change provisions relating to budget limitations and property tax levy limitations Revenue
02/04/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Support

106



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB544 Pahls

PAHLS PRIORITY 
BILL (2011)

Change provisions relating to civics education for students

Currently, state law provides that for grades below grade 6, one hour a week of school time should be 
devoted to “the duties of citizenship.”  This bill expands upon that by adding “including active 
participation in the improvement of a citizen's community, state, country, and world and the value and 
practice of civil discourse between opposing interests.”

Education
03/15/11
at 1:30 p.m.
room 1525
CANCELLED
02/14/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

03/03/11 03/15/11 Oppose

LB548 McCoy Change, transfer, and eliminate provisions relating to learning communities

Replaces the 18 generally elected voting members of learning community coordinating council with 9 
school board members from the districts in the learning community.  Selection of members: (a) one school 
board member would be appointed by the other school district members from each of the six learning 
community geographic districts (the elected member must live in the district) and (2) three at large school 
board members as appointed by all school board members within the learning community. Changes duties 
of the superintendent advisory committee.  Eliminates the achievement subcouncil and gives some of those 
previous duties to the superintendent advisory committee.  
Provides that the learning community coordinating council must approve a focus program, focus school, or 
pathway program before it is established by a learning community school districts.  Provides that learning 
community school districts may independently participate in one or more joint entities formed pursuant to 
the Interlocal Cooperation Act for the purpose of creating, implementing, and operating focus programs, 
focus schools, magnet schools, or pathway programs which shall not require the approval of the learning 
community coordinating council. Removes language designating a school district as the primary school 
district when the school districts collaborate on a focus program, focus school, or magnet school.  Provides 
that student selection and attendance for such focus programs, focus schools, magnet schools, and pathway 
programs, whether approved by the learning community coordinating council or created and operated 

Education
02/22/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Killed 
03/03/11

Support

LB558 Nordquist

NORDQUIST 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Change provisions relating to focus schools, focus programs, and magnet schools

Removes the “pursuant to the diversity plan developed
by the learning community coordinating council” language after the section that allows any members 
school district of a learning community to establish one or more focus programs, focus schools, or magnet 
schools.  Provides that if a focus school or focus program is part of a diversity plan of the learning 
community, it is eligible for an allowance.  Removes the designation of a primary school district when the 
school districts collaborate on a focus program, focus school, or magnet school.

Education
02/22/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

03/10/11 Monitor

LB564 Fulton

FULTON 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Change and eliminate provisions of the Industrial Relations Act and the State Employees Collective 
Bargaining Act

Business and 
Labor
02/07/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Supprot

107



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB572 Price Limit transfers of students between learning community member school districts

Provides that if a learning community coordinating council creates an elementary learning center within a 
member school district, a student residing in such member school district is not eligible to transfer to 
another school district within the learning community.

Education
02/28/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB582 Haar Adopt the Student Expression Act

Provides that the right of students to free expression in all public schools in Nebraska shall not be abridged 
except as provided in the Student Expression Act.  Prohibits certain types of student expression including 
(1) obscene expressions, defamatory expressions, and expression that creates clear and present danger of 
unlawful acts or causes material and substantial disruption of the school or invasion of privacy.  Provides 
that the Legislature encourages school districts to adopt and publish policies on student expression 
following the guidelines of the Student Expression Act.

Education
03/08/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB591 Gloor Provide for a syndromic surveillance program and change immunization information exchange provisions

The Department of Health and Human Services shall develop a syndromic surveillance program that 
respects patient privacy and benefits from advances in both electronic health records and electronic health 
information exchange. The syndromic surveillance program shall include the monitoring, detection, and 
investigation of public health threats. The department shall adopt standards for syndromic surveillance 
reporting by hospitals. The department may require syndromic surveillance reporting by other health care 
facilities or any person issued a credential by the department.  The department shall a schedule for the 
implementation of full electronic reporting of all syndromic surveillance data elements. Confidentiality and 
immunity provisions apply to syndromic surveillance data reports.  It is the intent of immunization 
information between professionals, facilities, and  departments health care professionals, health care 
facilities, health  care services, schools, postsecondary educational institutions, licensed child care facilities, 
electronic health-record systems,  public health departments, health departments of other states, Indian  
health services, and tribes for the purpose of protecting the public  health by facilitating age-appropriate 
immunizations which will  minimize the risk of outbreak of childhood vaccine-preventable diseases.  The 
Department of Health and Human Services shall establish an immunization information system for the 
purpose of providing a central data base.

Health and 
Human Services
02/24/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1510

03/10/11 Oppose

LB615 Krist Change provisions relating to access to student records and learning community reporting and diversity 
plans

See LB 636

Education
02/22/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB618 Harr Authorize possession of firearms as prescribed for school or school event security

Provides that peace officers or other duly authorized law enforcement officers, when contracted to or 
otherwise requested to by a school district, may possess a firearm on school property.

Judiciary
02/16/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1113

03/08/11 Support

108



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB619 Larson Remove school districts, learning communities, and educational service units from the Industrial Relations 
Act

See LB 397, LB 664, LR29CA

Business and 
Labor
02/07/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Oppose

LB633 Adams Change provisions relating to certain tax levies and certain bonds of school districts and authorize 
refunding bonds

Education
03/01/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

03/17/11 Support

LB634 Adams Change provisions relating to the tax levy authority of school districts relating to certain bonds

Allows a school district to exceed the maximum levy of 5.2¢ (to cover environmental hazard abetment and 
other projects) in any year in which: (1) the taxable valuation of the district is lower than the taxable 
valuation in the year in which the district last issued bonds pursuant to this section and (2) the maximum 
levy of 5.2¢ is insufficient to meet the combined annual principal and interest obligations for all bonds 
issued under section 79-10,110.  The amount generated from a district's levy in excess of the maximum 
levy of 5.2¢ upon the taxable valuation of the district may not exceed the combined annual principal and 
interest obligations for such bonds minus the amount generated by levying the maximum levy of 5.2¢ upon 
the taxable valuation of the district and minus any federal payments or subsidies associated with such 
bonds.

Education
03/01/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Support

LB635 Adams Change the Quality Education Accountability Act

Requires the State Board of Education to establish an index to be used to measure the performance of 
individual public schools beginning with school year 2012-13.  Schools who do not meet the minimum 
level of performance established by the board would be designated as a “priority school” and an 
intervention team would be established for each priority school.  The intervention team would develop 
annual progress plans.  Provides for possible loss of accreditation after 5 years of being a priority school.  

Education
03/15/11
at 1:30 p.m.
room 1525

Support

LB636 Adams Change provisions relating to access to student records and learning community reporting and diversity 
plans

Permits the disclosure of certain student records to learning community employees, but without identifiable 
personal information.  Requires the learning community coordinating council to annually report data and 
information provided by member school districts under certain sections to the Education Committee.  
Changes requirements for the learning community school districts to provide copies of applications 
submitted to attend a focus school, focus program, magnet school, or school building not in the student’s 
attendance area and to mark whether that application was accepted or rejected. 

See LB 615

Education
02/22/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

109



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB664 Nelson

NELSON 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Repeal the Industrial Relations Act and the State Employees Collective Bargaining Act and prohibit public 
collective bargaining and work stoppage

Business and 
Labor
02/07/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Support

LB680 Heidemann Adopt the School Employees Cash Balance Retirement Act

Creates a cash balance retirement system for new hire school employees, similar to the current plan offered 
to state employees, often referred to as a hybrid of both defined benefit and defined contribution plans.  
Does not impact the retirement system for existing school employees.   Under the State Employees 
Retirement Plan, employees contribute about 4.8% of salary and the employer (the state) contributes about 
7.5% of salary to an employee account.  The employee cannot control investment of the account, but is 
guaranteed an annual return of at least 5% a year.  The account can receive a higher return, depending on 
investment earnings.  At retirement, the employee may buy an annuity, or withdraw the balance in a lump 
sum or in installments.  The bill will likely be referred to an interim study after the session adjourns.  

NCSA:  Would create a cash balance retirement system for new hire school employees.  It is important to 
note this legislation would not change the retirement system for existing school employees.  The bill 
proposes a retirement system similar to the current plan offered to state employees, often referred to as a 
hybrid system (both a defined benefit and defined contribution plan).  Senator Heidemann offered the bill 
knowing that it would require significant study.  The bill will likely be referred to an interim study after the 
session adjourns.

Nebraska 
Retirement 
Systems
03/01/11
at 12:10 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

110



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Foundation Site Plan Grant Winners and Study Center Grants 
 
 
MEETING DATE:    April 4, 2011 
 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Office of the Superintendent 
 
 
TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:   
 
 
ACTION DESIRED:  Information 
 
 
BACKGROUND:   The Millard Public Schools foundation has announced the winners of this 
year’s site plan grants.  The total for this year is in the amount of $376,000.  The total of the Study 
Center grants is $465,650.  The enclosure lists those who were successful in their grant request, 
name of the school, and description of the grant.  The grant recipients will be recognized at the 
annual Foundation banquet on Friday, May 6, 2011. 
 
 
OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS:   

 

RECOMMENDATIONS:   

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:   
 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION:   
 
 
TIME LINE:    
 
 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Keith Lutz, Superintendent 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:  ____________________________________ 

111

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



 1

Millard Public Schools Foundation 
2011-2012 Site Plan Grant Recipients 
 
 
Grace Abbott Elementary 
Scholastic Reading Inventory  
$2,475.00 
Scholastic Reading Inventory (SRI) is a computer-based reading assessment program that will be 
given a few times a year to gauge a student’s progress in reading.  It supports the Leveled 
Literacy Inventory and will allow teachers to better make educational decisions for each of their 
students.  

 
Ackerman Elementary 
Family Night @ Your Library 
$3,903.00 

 
 
Black Elk Elementary 
Developing Assets through Learning and Literature 
$4,735.00 

 
 
Bryan Elementary 
Reading Together & the Kindness and Honor Retreats 
$9,947.50 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

112



 2

 
 
Cather Elementary 
Soaring High with Students and Parents 
$8,180.00 

 
 
Cody Elementary 
Cody Site Plan Grant 
$12,834.13 

 
 
Disney Elementary  
Parents and Students Together time (PASTime) 
$15,219.13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

113



 3

Ezra Millard Elementary  
Ezra Millard Soaring into Excellence 
$23,915 

 
 
Harvey Oaks Elementary 
Animal Antics Adventures 
$16,510.27 

 
 
Holling Heights Elementary 
Stretch the Leaning 
$24,264.30 
The grant is focused on stretching students’ learning opportunities.  Some of these 
opportunities are related to re-organizing and supporting students during the traditional 
instructional day.  Others are related to stretching the students’ day by extending the 
leaning opportunities to before and after school.  The plan is focused on extending 
learning opportunities for all students and to increase parent and community involvement. 
 
Neihardt Elementary 
Building Students – One Asset at a Time 
$4,250.00 

 
 
 

114



 4

Norris Elementary 
Developing Our Whole School Community 
$3,100.00 

 
 
 
Ronald W. Reagan Elementary 
Coming Together: Engaging Our School and Community through 
Service Learning 
$21,630.00 

 
 
Sandoz Elementary 
STRIPE Club and Jumpstart for out Tiger Cubs 
$9,824.25 

 
 
Upchurch Elementary 
LEAP (L-eaper E-nrichment A-sset P-rogram) 
$7,450.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 

115



 5

Wheeler Elementary 
RTI+I 
$12,180.00 

 
 
BIST Program for Elementary Schools 
Abbott, Ackerman, Black Elk, Bryan, Disney, Ezra Millard, Harvey 
oaks, Hitchcock, Holling Heights, Morton, Neihardt, Reeder, Rockwell, 
Rohwer, Sandoz 
$37,000 

 
 
Beadle Middle School 
Shared Decision Making to Enhance Engagement of All Stakeholders 
$14,970.06 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

116



 6

Central Middle School 
Every Child, Every Promise: Helping All Students  
Reach Their Highest Potential 
$25,420 

 
 
Kiewit Middle School 
Making Learning Irresistible – Thriving in Challenging Times 
$17,945.00 

 
 
Millard North Middle School  
Service Learning at NMS: Making a difference for our community. 
Meeting Means Success 
$10,639.73 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

117



 7

Millard Middle School Alternative Program 
How was Your Day at MSAP? 
$8,220.00 

 
 
Millard North High School 
Mustang Mentoring Program 
$24,750.00 

 
 
Millard West High School 
Fostering Coping and Resiliency Skills 
PSAT 
$13,000.00 
 

 

 
 

118



 8

Millard South High School 
Building a Foundation to Provide Academic Success 
Patriot mentoring Program 
$5,513.00 
 

 

 

 
 
Special Education Department 
Interactive Social Education Experiences (iSEE) 
$21,352.39 
 
Autism Spectrum Disorders are the second most common serious developmental 
disability.  Since 1994, the number of students with an educational verification of Autism 
has increased in Millard by 65%, and Special Education teachers have noted an increase 
number of students with Asperger’s Syndrome (AS) and High Functioning Autism 
(HFA).  While each student is unique, shared traits include difficulty understanding non-
verbal communication, feeling empathy, initiating and terminating conversations and 
recognizing the need for social reciprocity.  This frequently results in a life of 
unemployment, social isolation, and loneliness.  This program will enable Special 
Education teachers to hold weekly after-school social communication classes.  There will 
also be monthly outings in the general community for selected students with AS and HFA 
with peers they have been paired with to help them improve their social skills and quality 
of life. 
 

119



Millard Public Schools Foundation 
Study Center Funding 2011-12 
 
Abbot   $13,555 
Ackerman  $11,000 
Aldrich  $13,720 
Black Elk  $12,380 
Bryan   $11,000 
Cather   $ 9,920 
Cody   $13,276 
Cottonwood  $ 8,988 
Disney   $ 8,964 
Ezra Millard  $ 9,000 
Harvey Oaks  $14,000 
Hitchcock  $ 9,000 
Holling Heights $ 8,946 
Montclair  $12,570 
Morton  $ 9,000 
Neihardt  $ 9,000 
Norris   $10,836 
Reagan  $12,212 
Reeder   $11,500 
Rockwell  $12,420 
Rohwer  $11,326 
Sandoz   $13,316 
Upchurch  $14,000 
Wheeler  $11,739 
Willowdale  $12,404 
   $284,072 
 
Andersen Middle $17,120 
Beadle Middle  $15,000 
Central Middle $27,600 
Kiewit Middle  $13,840 
North Middle  $14,998 
Russell Middle  $15,000 
   $103,578  
 
Millard North High  $25,000 
Millard South High  $28,000 
Millard West High $25,000 
   $78,000                             
      
Total Study Centers   $465,650 

120


	Board Packet April 4, 2011
	Agenda
	Administrative Memorandum
	E.1. Board Minutes March 21, 2011
	H.1. Appointment of NCLB Authorized Representative
	H.2. Approval of Schedule and Deadline for Submission of Board Vacancy Application
	H.3. Approval of Rule 3215.1 - Support Services - business - Students - Tuition
	Rule 3215.1
	H.4. First Reading of Policy 3225 - Support Services - Business - Property - Sale & Disposal
	Policy 3225
	H.5. Delete Policy 3230 - Support Services - Sales and Rental of Property
	Policy 3230
	H.6. Delete Rule 3225.1 - Support Services - Disposal of Discarded or Withdrawn Library Media Resources
	Rule 3225.1
	H.7. and H.8. Delete Policy 5141 and Rule 5141.1
	H.7. Delete Policy 5141 - Pupil Services - Management of Funds
	H.8. Delete Rule 5141.1 - Students - Management of Funds
	H.9. Approval of Rule 5400.6 - Pupil Services - Standards for Student Conduct
	Rule 5400.6
	H.10. Administrator for Hire at MNHS
	H.10. Administrator for Hire at MSHS
	H.11. Approval of Personnel Actions: Amendment to a Continuing Contract, Leave of Absence, 
	Amendment to Continuing Contract
	Leave of Absence
	Resignations
	Rescission of Voluntary Separation and Resignation
	New Hire
	I.1. Budget Projections Report
	I.2.  Enrollment Report
	I.3. Insurance Report
	I.4. Legislative Update
	I.5. Foundation Site Plan Grant Winners and Study Center Grants



